
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
30 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 

AGENDA 

January 27, 2020 
Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm 

∗ Public comment will be permitted at the time of the discussion of the agenda items marked with an asterisk (*). The content and timing rules applicable 
to public comment at the opening of the Council Meeting shall also apply to comments on agenda items. Such public comment shall be permitted only 
after each of Town Council has been provided the opportunity to discuss the respective agenda item. 

Pg # Presenter 

1. Call to Order ............................................................................................................................. Mayor Root 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda .................................................................................... Mayor Root 

3. Approval of Minutes ……………………………………………………………………………………..………............... Mayor Root 
A. December 12, 2019 Joint Meeting of Town Council/Planning & Zoning Board Minutes .... 
B. December 16, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes ............................................. 

1 
5 

4. General Public Comments …........……………………………………………...…………………………................ Mayor Root 

5. Consent Agenda ....................................................................................................................... Town Manager 

A. Tax Collector’s Monthly Report ........................................................................................... 
B. Tax Releases & Refunds ....................................................................................................... 
C. Arbor Day Resolution ........................................................................................................... 
D. Adoption of FY 2020-2021 Budget Calendar ....................................................................... 
E. Set Public Hearing on Code Amendments-Technical Review Committee for Land

Development for February 24, 2020 at 6:45pm .................................................................. 
F. Lake Louise Public Fishing Access Project ............................................................................ 
G. Budget Amendment: Police Dept Cops for Kids & Pink Patch …………………………………………. 

9 
11 
12 
14 

16 
21 
31 

6. Town Manager’s Report ........................................................................................................... 33 Town Manager 

7. Discussion & Action Items

A. Community Center Project * ................................................................................................ 
B. Waterline Extension Project * .............................................................................................. 
C. Policies regarding Acceptance of Private Streets * .............................................................. 
D. Quarterly Report:  Planning .................................................................................................. 
E. Quarterly Report:  Finance ................................................................................................... 

35 
40 
90 

107 
110 

Town Manager 
Town Manager 
Town Mgr/Atty 
Planning Director 
Finance Director 

18. Adjournment ……………………………………………………......……………………………………………................. Mayor Root 



December 12, 2019 Minutes of Special Called Joint Meeting 
between Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board 

Town of Weaverville 
Minutes 

Special Called Joint Meeting of Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board 
Tuesday, December 12, 2019 – Town Hall  

The Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board for the Town of Weaverville met for a Special Called Joint Meeting 
on Tuesday, December 12, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main 
Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council members present: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilmember Doug Jackson, Councilmembers Patrick 
Fitzsimmons and Andrew Nagle. Councilmembers Dottie Sherrill and Jeff McKenna were absent.  

Planning and Zoning Board members present: Chairman Gary Burge, Vice Chairman Catherine Cordell, Board Members: 
Peter Stanz, John Chase and Steve Warren, Alternate Board Member Rachel Brunson. Alternate Member Tom Balestrieri 
was absent. 

Staff present: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Planner James Eller, and Town 
Clerk Derek Huninghake 

1. Call to Order
Mayor Root called the meeting to order on behalf of Town Council at 6:00pm.
Chairman Gary Burge called the meeting to order on behalf of the Planning and Zoning Board at 6:00pm.

Mayor Root opened the meeting by noting that this Special Called Joint meeting is for Town Council to receive
feedback from the Planning and Zoning Board on what they see as the top priorities and concerns in the Town, what
their role is and how it can better serve Town Council and discuss the possibility of creating a new R-4 zoning district.
Mayor Root mentioned that the approved 2020 Town Council meeting schedule includes a joint meeting every four
months which will be beneficial for both boards to be on the same page.

2. Discussion
Mr. Stanz commented that he doesn’t feel they have done a lot of planning, but instead more reacting and would like
them to have the power to do more planning. He also wonders how the P&Z Board could assist staff in getting more
top priority items to the top of the list. He understands there is a balance between the volunteer board trying to help
staff and not getting in the way. He has thought for a long time that mixed use was the number one priority, but
believes it has been pushed back down the list to allow for affordable housing. He spoke with Town Manager Coffey
about the community center project and if affordable housing is that important then why don’t we talk with developers
about giving them extra funds to help with affordable housing.

Vice Mayor Jackson noted that he would like the P&Z Board to look into issues that were developed on the strategic
plan like mixed-use housing and provide input to Town Council on where they see trends going in five or ten years.
He believes the board being involved in more long term strategic planning would be beneficial.

Mr. Burge agreed with Vice Mayor Jackson’s suggestion and mentioned that the P&Z Board follows the priority list
that they wanted to address like affordable housing and then next mixed use housing, when they aren’t working on
text amendments and zoning changes. He believes their main responsibility is to the Town citizens with regards to
what Weaverville will be like in five or ten years, so as an advisory board he would like the ability to provide Town
Council with input on issues that could be addressed by changes in zoning laws and subdivision regulations.

1



December 12, 2019 Minutes of Special Called Joint Meeting  
between Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board 

 
 
Councilmember Nagle wondered if there was a job description for the roles of the P&Z Board and if there were any 
limitations to what the board couldn’t do. Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that at the last joint meeting they 
discussed what the law and ordinances allow the board to do and the duties assigned by Town Council through 
ordinances. She noted that there aren’t any limitations to what the P&Z Board does as an advisory board. Town 
Planner Eller mentioned that state legislature allow Town Council to delegate the authority to approve subdivision 
plans to the P&Z Board, but that has not been done in Weaverville. Councilmember Nagle then noted that it would be 
a great idea to broaden the scope of responsibilities of the P&Z Board and not just for specific projects.  
 
Mayor Root mentioned that at the end of the day the elected officials are the ones that will be held responsible for the 
decision, but the ability for the P&Z Board to offer their advice in a detailed way lets them see things that Town 
Council might not. He knows there are items that have to go before the P&Z Board before Town Council can do 
anything and believes that if there is a desire on the P&Z Board to go a different direction then Town Council wants 
to hear that feedback. 
 
Mrs. Cordell mentioned that this was where the P&Z Board gets stuck, since Town Council does the future plan and 
gives them their list of top priorities. They look at their role as this is what Town Council wants, so they don’t think 
they are able to come back to Council and tell them this doesn’t work. Instead they look at the list and wonder how 
they can make it work. Mayor Root noted that in terms of prioritization, the difference between item one, two and 
three isn’t that important.  
 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons noted that they will always welcome recommendations since often they recognize the 
problem, but don’t know the answer and look for the P&Z Board for some input.  
 
Mr. Stanz mentioned that the top two priorities on the list are affordable housing and mixed use developments. It 
seems to him that affordable housing came to the P&Z Board from Town Council and they wonder how that is 
important to Weaverville and where it is coming from. As for mixed uses the P&Z Board brought that to Town 
Council, since there were places where developers told them they couldn’t do that. But they aren’t able to go back to 
the developer and tell them that they are able to do something else.  
 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons noted that it comes from the fact that the average price of homes are higher in 
Weaverville than in Asheville and the average age is rising every year as well, since younger families can’t afford to 
live here.  For the future of the Town this won’t work and we are trying to find a way for younger families to move to 
Weaverville. 
 
Mrs. Cordell noted that they discovered that high density doesn’t mean affordable housing, since they have allowed 
developments to be different than the standards were so they could have high density, but the homes were still around 
$500,000. The original affordable housing was probably R-3, but that district allows manufactured homes which not 
everyone wants, but do we have a place for this to be. Also, they have approved more apartments recently, however 
they received an email about the apartment costs increasing 5% each year. She believes that it is nice that we are 
looking at affordable housing, but where we sit now we have done our best job of letting it come to us like Lillie 
Farm. The Town of Weaverville isn’t able to manage affordable housing to make sure the owners live in the homes 
for 15 years and not sell to make a profit. 
 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons mentioned that most of the affordable housing developments intend to be apartments 
opposed to housing developments, since we aren’t able to require developers to build houses at a certain price. He 
noted that the Town doesn’t have the ability to manage these sites, but wonders what we can do to partner with 
Mountain Housing Opportunities or Habitat for Humanity to find ways for us to be more attractive for these 
developments. 
 
Mrs. Cordell commented that she really doesn’t want to see a new R district for high density or affordable housing, 
since we are managing it well and need to wait for it to come to us one step at a time. She said that people are parking 
on sidewalks when setbacks are reduced and their garages are full, due to density. 

2



December 12, 2019 Minutes of Special Called Joint Meeting  
between Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board 

 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons noted that denser zoning is not only for affordable houses, but infill properties in the 
heart of Town would allow for people to drive less and walk to more businesses. Mrs. Cordell agreed with pursuing 
the infill properties.  
 
Mayor Root mentioned that this could have been a misimpression that Town Council had given them. It may well be 
that the R-4 district could be good for affordable housing and could add other benefits. Mr. Burge noted that the 
general feeling is that if they create R-4 with high density and smaller lots than this would become default for single 
family construction in Weaverville. 
 
Vice Mayor Jackson commented that Town Manager Coffey had gotten some statistics on rental costs in Weaverville 
compare to Asheville and it appeared that our costs were cheaper than Asheville. Town Planner Eller noted that he 
provided information related to a study done related to Asheville, and it showed that our citizens make more money 
and our rent costs less. Town Manager Coffey mentioned that the key clarification is that the numbers didn’t match 
the narrative and we had to back into the formula. Town Planner Eller added that the information was obtained from 
the American Community Survey that was conducted in 2017 and the City of Asheville had commissioned a Bowen 
Report that gives them information that is two years newer, so that is as close as we could get to making the numbers 
match. 
 
Mr. Warren mentioned that one thing that was brought up at their last board meeting was the fact that they don’t have 
all the answers and it might be helpful to get some outside experts that understand the housing industry to give us a 
tutorial, rather than try to answer the dilemma on their own. Mayor Root wonders if it would be better for those folks 
to meet with the P&Z Board or have a workshop with Town Council included as well. He would like us to be more 
proactive in reaching out them for more help on possible grants and other possibilities.  
 
Councilmember Nagle mentioned that Town Council asked about creating R-4 thinking that this could help affordable 
housing, but what we are really trying to figure out is how we can get younger families with lower incomes to be able 
to move to Weaverville.  
 
Mr. Stanz reiterated his earlier statement that if Town Council really wants affordable housing then how much are 
they willing to invest to create affordable housing, if it is nothing then we shouldn’t pursue it. He also noted that there 
isn’t very much land left to develop, so we need to figure out what we want in those locations. Mayor Root disagreed 
on the topic of spending money and thinks there is a different way to look at it. He believes that we can channel it 
through zoning to make sure that things are setup correctly.  
 
Mr. Warren commented that he doesn’t know if there is a big demand for affordable housing. After all we are only a 
Town of 4,000 residents and if you go a 1 mile outside you are in the county, shouldn’t the county offer affordable 
housing? Or why does the Town have to take on the task of creating affordable housing? He isn’t in the private sector 
so he doesn’t know if the housing market is pursuing these types of developments.  
 
Mr. Burge noted that he has spoken with neighbors and citizens about affordable housing and they don’t want 
$250,000 homes coming into their neighborhood because it would lower the value of their property. Plus he spoke 
with a few developers and they don’t want to build these types of developments either. He doesn’t see a distressed 
economic area in Weaverville.  
 
Town Planner Eller noted that most of the time affordable housing is found in multi-family configuration. As for 
Lillie Farm Cove like Mrs. Cordell brought up, it was approved in September 2016 with each unit being a single 
family home and 32 out of 46 were offered at affordable housing pricing levels. The Town has issued 196 permits 
from September and, to date, that equates to 16% of zoning permits issued to new single family construction have 
gone to affordable housing. Mr. Eller noted that this was a Mountain Housing Opportunities project and they are 
obligated to operate under the terms of 80% of the income.  
 

3



December 12, 2019 Minutes of Special Called Joint Meeting  
between Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board 

Councilmember Fitzsimmons noted that the desire is to have younger families in Weaverville besides just to diversify 
the age in Weaverville. We don’t see a lot of kids around Weaverville that actually live in Town and we don’t want to 
only have the older generation.  
Councilmember Nagle noted that potentially there are other things that the Town could do like spend money on such 
as fiber optic technology, dog park, and community center to attract younger families to move here. Mr. Burge 
mentioned that true high speed internet would be an attraction as well as allowing the capability of free WiFi on Main 
Street. Mr. Stanz commented that zoning might not be the answer for attracting younger families to the area.  
 
Mr. Burge mentioned that the P&Z Board is interested in mixed use, since it gives the Town more flexibility and 
could be a way to address affordable housing while having a business below that creates jobs. Councilmember 
Fitzsimmons noted that this is attractive and our downtown is booming, but there is no place to put them. However a 
mixed use development somewhere outside downtown might be desirable.   
 
Councilmember Fitzsimmons mentioned that the issue of Airbnb growth in our Town will need to be addressed soon, 
as well as the possibility of allowing for tiny homes. It would be good if we can try and get out in front of this, instead 
of having to react when someone brings it up to us. Mr. Burge noted that they didn’t consider accessory dwelling units 
like garage apartments, since the downside is that it encourages Airbnb’s and could ruin the character of the Town of 
Weaverville.  
 

3. Overview 
Mayor Root mentioned that if he is hearing this correctly, Town Council doesn’t want to task the P&Z Board with 
drafting an R-4 ordinance, but to broaden their scope of responsibility and for them to come back to Council and 
advise them on what to do. Mixed use is a very interesting topic and if P&Z Board wants to tackle this issue and bring 
back their suggestions to Council at an upcoming next meeting. He also noted that we start shifting away from 
affordable housing and to find ways to attract younger families.  
 
Mr. Burge agreed with Mayor Root, since the possibilities are actually there to do something. The more we think 
about affordable housing then the less we will actually change anything because it would have unattainable 
consequences to the Town. He also introduced the Planning and Zoning Boards new alternate member, Rachael 
Bronson.  
 

4. Adjournment. 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn the Town Council meeting; Councilman Fitzsimmons 
seconded and all of Town Council voted to adjourn the Council’s meeting at 7:26 p.m. 

Board member Cordell made the motion to adjourn the meeting of the Planning and Zoning Board; Board member 
Stanz seconded and all Board members voted to adjourn the Board’s meeting at 7:26 p.m. 

 

___________________________________                                     ___________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk                                    JAMES ELLER, Town Planner 

______________________________________                                        ______________________________________ 
MAYOR ALLAN ROOT                                                               CHAIRMAN GARY BURGE 
 

4



Page 1 of 4 December 16, 2019 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

MINUTES 
Town of Weaverville    Town Council Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, December 16, 2019 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, December 16, 2019, at 
7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council members present were: Vice Mayor/Councilmember Doug Jackson and Councilmembers Dottie Sherrill, Jeffrey 
McKenna, Andrew Nagle and Patrick Fitzsimmons. Mayor Al Root was absent. 

Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Town 
Clerk Derek Huninghake, Town Planner James Eller, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Police Chief Ron Davis, Public Works 
Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 

1. Call to Order
Vice Mayor Doug Jackson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda
Councilmember Sherrill made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilmember McKenna seconded and
all voted in favor of the motion.

3. Approval of Minutes
Councilmember McKenna made the motion to approve the minutes from November 18, 2019 Town Council Regular
Workshop. Councilmember Nagle seconded the motion and all voted in favor on the approval of the minutes.

4. General Public Comment
Terry Yeager, 107 Elk Lane, commented that two Airbnb’s have been operating in his lovely residential neighborhood
and the continuous traffic has become an issue. He understands that Airbnb’s are very profitable and in high demand,
but he believes they should be managed properly and not allowed in residential areas. He is asking that Town Council
look into establishing an ordinance about this issue.

Laura Ayers, 300-1 Reems Creek Road, commented that she noticed that the issue of actual acres versus useable acres
came up again on the rezoning of Merrimon Avenue property at Town Council’s October meeting. She noted that this
issue will more than likely come up again in the future, so she asked Town Council to look into adding the “actual
acres versus useable acres” into the ordinance.

5. Consent Agenda
Councilmember Sherrill moved for the approval of the Consent Agenda. Councilmember Fitzsimmons seconded the
motion and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the Consent Agenda.

A. Tax Collector’s Monthly Report – Informational Only

5



Page 2 of 4 December 16, 2019 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Tax Releases & Refunds– Approved the tax release of a portion of real property owned by Dorothy Lille, LLC,
PIN 9752-09-1393,valued at $192,400,  so that $731.12 can be released from the 2018 levy and refunded, the tax
release of a portion of real property owned by Dorothy Lille, LLC, PIN 9752-09-1393, valued at $146,705, so
that $557.48  can be released from the 2019 levy, and the tax release of a portion of real property owned by Amit
Dorf, PIN 9742-99-4566, valued at $512,430, so that $1,947.23 can be released from the 2019 levy.

C. 2015 Closure of Portion of Brittain Street and Water Easements – Adopted the Amended and Restated
Resolution and Order Regarding Permanent Closure of Portion of Brittain Street and accepting the Waterline
Easement Agreements.

D. Road Closure Ordinance: Music on Main 2020 – Approved Road Closure Ordinance for Music on Main
on June 20, 2020 from 12:00 pm until 10:30 pm

6. Town Manager’s Report
Town Manager Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council including that 1) it is time again for her to start
ordering the fireworks for the Town’s downtown July 4, 2020 event, unless Town Council or Mayor have any
reservations; 2) she thanked Councilmember Sherrill for organizing another fantastic Christmas Parade and also
congratulated her on it being her 30th year organizing the Christmas Parade; 3) the Community Center project is out to
bid and due by 2:00 pm on January 22, 2020, so staff will be bringing back a recommended bid/proposal at the
January 2020 meeting; 4) the Waterline Improvement project is now open for bids and are due by 2:00 pm on January
15, 2020; 5) she is very proud of all our departments for participating in October’s Breast Cancer Awareness and
#PinkPatchProject and with their efforts the Town was able to raise $3,811 to go to The Hope Chest for Women; and
6) lastly, she and staff have met on the downtown parking and parking enforcement issues, unfortunately, they are not
at a place to present their findings and recommendations. It can be expected to be at the January 27, 2020 Town
Council meeting.  Merry Christmas and Happy Holidays to you all!!

7. Discussion and Action Items
A. Greenway Project Update
Doug Dearth has been working with Buncombe County staff on the Greenway project and provided Town Council
with a brief update. Mr. Dearth noted that the project is on track and making progress. The letters of interest or request
for proposals (RFP) have been put out for bids with a deadline of January 20, 2020. Under the rules that govern this
project at least three bids are required, however if more than three are submitted the Oversite committee will cut down
the list through interviews until there are only three remaining. The Oversite Committee will consist of 6 members:
two Buncombe County representatives, one being Buncombe County Director of Parks and Rec. Josh O’Connor,
Town Manager Selena Coffey, Doug Dearth, MPO Board representative Tristan Winkler, and NCDOT representative.
The Oversite Committee will manage/oversee the progress of the successful vendor and hold at least three progress
meetings and one open house public meeting during the process.

B. Acceptance of Waterlines for Maple Trace Phase IV
Public Works Director Dale Pennell mentioned that Windsor Built Homes, Inc. is in the process of developing a
subdivision outside of Town limits known as Maple Trace. They have completed the water infrastructure for Phase
IV, the last phase of the subdivision, and those lines are ready to be accepted into the Town’s water system. He is
requesting that Town Council accept the waterline extension and related improvements into the Town’s water system
subject to staff level approval by the Town Manager, Town Attorney and himself. He also urges Town Council to set
an improvement defects guaranty at $4,000 to cover any defects that might be discovered within three years of our
acceptance.

Councilmember Sherrill made a motion to accept the waterline extension and related improvements into the Town’s 
water system subject to staff level approval by the Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Public Works Director, and 
set the improvement defects guaranty amount at $4,000. Councilmember Nagle seconded the motion. The motion 
passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 4-0 

6



 

 
Page 3 of 4  December 16, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

C. Remote Participation in Town Council Meetings 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that Town Council has an opportunity to put in place some rules that can 
help govern remote participation at Town Council Meetings. Remote participation is referred to when a 
councilmember is not able to be physically present at a meeting, but has technology available to phone/video into the 
meeting to have their presence noted and to be heard. Town Attorney Jackson noted two areas to be careful with: 1) If 
the remote member would be necessary to constitute a quorum, and 2) how the members vote counts if technology 
fails. She proposes that remote participation be allowable as long as it is not necessary to make a quorum or to cast a 
deciding vote, since it could be subject to challenge. 
 
Councilmember Nagle mentioned that he thinks this is a good thing to do so Council isn’t breaking the law, but he 
believes if a Councilmember walks out of the room and still counts towards quorum, then it would be the same if the 
call failed for the remote participant. Town Attorney Jackson noted that there is a provision in the resolution that if the 
member knows they only have a limited amount of time then there would be notification that they are excused from 
the meeting.  
 
Councilmember McKenna mentioned that this will only be an occasional situation and all members should still make 
their best effort to make the meetings. Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that if someone is abusing it then Town 
Council has the authority to cut it off.  
 
Councilmember McKenna made a motion to approve the resolution adopting special rules for remote participation in 
Town Council meetings as presented. Councilmember Nagle seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous 
vote of Council.  Motion passed 4-0.  
 
D. Town Hall Entry 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that there have been quite a few questions about what will be going in the 
circular area in front of the Town Hall, so she included this to the agenda for Town Council discussion. She proposed 
for it to be a fountain built in brick on the outside with a topper and inside a structural ring that can heat the water, 
adjust the lighting and control the water flow direction. The project is estimated to be around $10,000. 
 
Councilmember Nagle asked Town Manager Coffey for a recap on why the Town had to remove the previous tree in 
front of the Town Hall and wondered if the Town had any way to appeal the NCDOT decision when they don’t agree 
with it. Councilmember Fitzsimmons agreed and noted that when it affects the appearance of our Town, we should be 
able to have a say in the matter. Town Manager Coffey mentioned that NCDOT requested the Town remove the tree 
since it was obstructing the crosswalk signs that need to be visual. The Town appealed the decision twice, but was 
turned down. 
 
Councilmember McKenna mentioned that hopefully the NCDOT would consider a different outcome instead of 
requiring the Town to dip into their funds to purchase a replacement for the tree. He also recommended that staff get 
approval from NCDOT on the design of the fountain to make sure they don’t come back and have us remove it. 
 
Councilmember Nagle commented that he wasn’t in favor of the fountain and doesn’t know if the Town should be 
making such a bold statement, instead he would rather see a neon sign that list Town events/meetings. 
 
Vice Mayor Jackson noted that Town Manager Coffey would like some kind of consensus from Town Council, so 
staff can move forward with a plan. He is in favor of the fountain and believes it would be another attraction to our 
Town like the clock and waterwheel.  
 
Consensus was given by Town Council to move ahead with the fountain after it has been approved by NCDOT. 
 
 
 

7



 

 
Page 4 of 4  December 16, 2019  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

E. Quarterly Report: Public Works and Water Department 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell presented the Public Works and Water Services Quarterly Report for September 
2019 through November 2019. Some highlights were that the total number of active water meters has increased to 
2,901 and our monthly unaccounted water increased to 14-15% in November, but due to dry weather the Town found 
a broken 2 inch waterline under Reems Creek that was the culprit. Mr. Pennell also noted that at the Water Treatment 
Plant our daily average is still only at 45% of the plant capacity, and if the current water commitments are included it 
increases to 67%. Lastly, he mentioned that the Quarry Road project is underway and if weather cooperates we will 
have an 18 foot wide road completed by Thursday and our Public Works department is running behind on leaf pickup 
this season since equipment had to be repaired and staffing issues with temporary employees, so leaf season will be 
extended to at least January 17, 2020.  
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that completion of Quarry Road was part of the feasibility study on the 
Greenway project, which required building sidewalks around this portion that could potentially loop back towards the 
water wheel. Also, she bragged about how staff was able to save the Town significant money by sloping and cutting 
back the area that was supposed to require a retaining wall.  
 

8. Adjournment 
Councilmember Sherrill made the motion to adjourn; Councilmember McKenna seconded and all voted to adjourn 
the Council’s meeting at 7:54 p.m. 

__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

8



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2020  

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER: Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of 
January 21, 2020. This report is provided for information only.  

No action is requested or required. 

9



1/21/2020
Real Property: 783,958,380$        
Real Property Discoveries: 902,400 

Total Real Property: 784,860,780$        
Personal: 73,730,921$           
Personal Discoveries: 17,090 

Total Personal: 73,748,011             
Public Utilities: 5,406,640               
Exemption: (9,435,215)              
Releases: (2,626,231)              
Total Tax Value 851,953,985$        

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: 2,982,471$             
Personal Property: 280,242 
Public Utilities: 20,545$  
Less Under $5 Adjustment (47) 
Total Public Utilities: 20,498 
Exemption: (35,854) 
Releases: (9,980) 
Total Levy (Total Billed) 3,237,378$             

Total Current Year Collections 3,032,974$             
% Collected 93.69%

Total Left to be Collected: 204,405$                

Prior Years Paid 4,394$  

Town of Weaverville
MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2019-20

10



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2019 

SUBJECT: Tax Releases 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Town Council is asked to approve a tax release from a 2019 tax bill for personal property 
owned by G C W Enterprises Inc. DBA Firehouse Subs at 58 Weaver Village Way, Suite 101, 
for $102,780 in value and $390.56 from the 2019 tax levy.  

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is requested to approved the above-described release. This action could be in 
the form of the following motion:  

I move to approve the release of personal property from G C W Entreprises, Inc. 
DBA Firehouse Subs, valued at $102,780, so that $390.56 can be released from 
the 2019 levy. 

11



Town of Weaverville 

Town Council Agenda Item 

Date of Meeting: Monday, January 27, 2020 

Subject: Arbor Day 2020 Resolution 

Presenter:  Town Manager Selena Coffey 

Attachments:  Arbor Day Resolution 

Description: 

Attached and for approval, please find a resolution for recognizing Friday, April 24, 2020 as 
Arbor Day. 

Action Requested:  

The Town Manager recommends approval of the attached resolution. 

12



Whereas, In 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of  

Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, 

and 

Whereas, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more 

than a million trees in Nebraska, and  

Whereas, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 

Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and 

water, cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, 

produce life-giving oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife, and 

Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, 

fuel for our fires and countless other wood products, and 

Whereas, trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of 

business areas, and beautify our community, and 

Whereas, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual 

renewal. 

Now, Therefore, I, , Mayor of the Town of
do hereby proclaim

as 

In the Town of , and I urge all 

citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support efforts to protect our 

trees and woodlands, and 

Further, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-being 

of this and future generations. 

Dated this  day of 

Mayor 

13



Town of Weaverville 

Town Council Agenda Item 

Date of Meeting: Monday, January 27, 2020 

Subject: FY 2020-2021 Budget Calendar 

Presenter:  Town Manager Selena Coffey 

Attachments:  Budget Calendar 

Description: 

Attached and for approval, please find the proposed budget calendar for the fiscal year 2020-
2021 budget process.  In reviewing this calendar, please note that all but one budget workshop 
will be held on a regularly scheduled workshop date.  The one workshop date not previously 
scheduled by Town Council is June 16 and it is marked as “to be determined” in case Town 
Council does not need the workshop as it works through the budget process. 

Action Requested:  

The Town Manager recommends approval of the budget calendar. 

14



Town of Weaverville 
Budget Calendar 

FY 2020-2021 Budget 

Budget Activity Date/Time/Location 

Budget Requests & CIP Requests Due to Manager Friday, March 6, 2020 
Due by 5:00pm 

Manager’s Budget Review, Analysis & Department Head 
Meetings in Development of Proposed Budget 

March 6 – April 12, 2020 

Initial Draft Budget Presentation 
(Regular Town Council Meeting) 

Monday, April 27, 2020 
7:00pm 

Budget Workshop #1  
(Regularly-Scheduled Workshop) 

Tuesday, May 12, 2020 
6:00pm 

Set Public Hearing on Budget 
(Regular Town Council Meeting) 

Monday, May 18, 2020 
7:00pm 

Budget Workshop #2: Public Hearing on Budget 
(Regularly-Scheduled Workshop) 

Tuesday, June 9, 2020 
6:00pm 

Budget Workshop #3 
(Special-Called Workshop;  To be determined) 

Tuesday, June 16, 2019 
6:00pm 

Town Council’s Adoption of Budget / Ordinance 
(Regular Town Council Meeting) 

Monday, June 22, 2020 
7:00pm 

15



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Monday, January 27, 2020 

Subject: Setting a Public Hearing on a Proposed Text Amendment to 
Create a Technical Review Committee  

Presenter:  Planning Director 

Attachments: Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation; Proposed Text 
Amendment; Staff Report 

Description: 

Staff has prepared a text amendment to achieve a stated goal of the comprehensive land 
use plan of creating a staff-led technical review committee for development reviews. The 
Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed said text amendment and offered a unanimous 
positive recommendation to Town Council related to the proposed text amendment.  

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the setting of a public hearing before Town Council on Monday, February 
24 at 6:45pm, or at such time as Council reaches the matter, for the aforementioned text 
amendment. 

16



Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

On Tuesday, January 7, 2020 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and unanimously 
recommended to Town Council  the attached proposed text amendment which formally creates a 
technical review committee charged with reviewing all subdivision applications and certain zoning 
permit applications and offering an opinion to the appropriate authority based upon the committee’s 
findings of compliance with municipal ordinance and relevant state and federal laws, rules and 
regulations. 

It has been found that the proposed text amendment is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive 
Plan in that the plan calls for the creation of a technical review committee in both subdivision and 
zoning stated goals as follows: 

Implement a staff-led technical review committee for development reviews. 

The Planning and Zoning Board considers approval both reasonable and in the public interest as the 
formalized technical review committee will ensure proper development reviews and offer an 
opportunity for various members of staff to provide their individual expertise on certain development 
reviews. 

_______________________________________ 

Gary Burge 
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board 

17



Sec. 25-78. - General procedures for review of major and minor subdivisions. 

All applications for development of major or minor subdivisions, including for review of concept plans, 
preliminary plats and final plats, shall be submitted to the town planner at the Weaverville Town Hall. In 
order to be considered at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the planning and zoning board, 
applications must comply with all code requirements and be received at least ten business days before 
the meeting. The planning director shall coordinate an evaluation of all applications for minor and major 
subdivisions with a technical review committee consisting of members of individual municipal 
departments, including but not limited to the Fire Marshal and Public Works Director or their designees, 
who may offer expertise on the proposed development. The technical review committee shall offer an 
opinion on the application for a minor or major subdivision to the Planning and Zoning Board and Town 
Council based upon the committee’s findings of compliance with various sections of municipal ordinance 
and relevant federal and state laws, rules and regulations.  

All subdivisions shall be considered major subdivisions except those defined as minor subdivisions in 
section 25-27. Minor subdivisions shall be reviewed in accordance with the procedure set forth in section 
25-79. The minor subdivision procedure may not be used a second time within three years from the date
of its first use on any property which is less than 1,500 feet from the original property boundaries by
anyone who owned, had an option on, or any legal or equitable interest in the original subdivision at the
time the original subdivision received concept plan, preliminary plat or final plat approval. Major
subdivisions shall be reviewed in accordance with the procedures set forth in sections 25-81 through 25-
83.

( Ord. of 3-21-2016(1), § 1(Exh. A) ; Ord. of 10-17-2016(1), § 1 ) 

Sec. 36-298. - Zoning permits required.  

A zoning permit shall be obtained from the zoning administrator before beginning any construction 
on any lot within the town's zoning jurisdiction. No lot shall be graded so as to alter its contour and no 
building or other structure shall be erected, moved, added to, or structurally altered prior to the issuance 
of said zoning permit. In no event will the zoning administrator approve any permit for the grading of any 
lot or the construction or alteration of any building if such building, or its intended use would be in violation 
of any of the provisions of this chapter, or if the contour of any lot would be altered or graded in violation 
of the screening and buffering requirements of this chapter. 

(1) Application for permit. All applications for zoning permits shall be accompanied by such
information as the zoning administrator determines as needed for a full review of the request.
Zoning administrator shall ensure that all applications are compliant with the applicable sections
of this chapter prior to issuance of permit or transmittal to the decision-making board.

(2) Issuance of zoning permit. Prior to issuing a zoning permit the zoning administrator shall first
review the application and supporting documentation to determine compliance with all of the
applicable requirements of this chapter. If the plans show that the proposed construction meets
all of the requirements of this chapter the zoning administrator shall, prior to the issuance of the
zoning permit, make an inspection of the site to determine that the actual location of all existing
or proposed buildings or structures, parking areas, buffer strips etc. are located as shown on the
plans. If the services of the town engineer or of a registered land surveyor are required to
assure that the actual locations, on the ground, are as shown on the plans, the cost of this
service shall be paid by the applicant prior to issuance of the zoning permit. Any such charges
shall be in addition to the normal charges for such zoning permit. After the zoning administrator
finds that the plans and on-site locations meet the requirements of this chapter, the
administrator shall issue a zoning permit stating that the proposed construction, if built as
located, meets the provisions of this chapter and that the applicant can apply for building and
other permits. When reviewing proposed uses of land related to new commercial, industrial or
multifamily residential development, or uses which require the issuance of or an amendment to

18

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=790579&datasource=ordbank
http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=796201&datasource=ordbank


a special use permit or the adoption of a conditional zoning district, the planning director shall 
coordinate an evaluation of the zoning permit application with a technical review committee 
consisting of members of individual municipal departments, including but not limited to the Fire 
Marshal and Public Works Director or their designees, who may offer expertise on variables of 
the proposed development. The technical review committee shall offer an opinion to the zoning 
administrator on the zoning permit application based upon the committee’s findings of 
compliance with various sections of municipal ordinance and relevant federal and state laws, 
rules and regulations. 

Explanatory note: While it may be obvious that a proposed building or structure to be located on 
a large tract of land meets the setback requirements by simple observation, actual field 
measurements would be required to determine compliance on a typical residential lot. All such 
measurements must be made from actual property or right-of-way lines using property corner or 
right-of-way markers. It may be assumed that the paved portion of any street or alley is in the 
center of the right-of-way for this purpose only if the right-of-way of record cannot be otherwise 
established by actual surveys.  

(3) County permits required. After the zoning permit is approved and issued, the applicant shall
apply to the Buncombe County Permits and Inspections Department, or any successor thereto,
for building, plumbing, electrical or other required permits. If such permits are not issued within
60 days after issuance of the zoning permit, the zoning permit shall become invalid.

(4) Construction progress. If no substantial construction progress has been made within 180
calendar days of the date of the issuance of the zoning permit, or if work is suspended for 365
calendar days, the zoning permit shall become invalid; provided, however, the zoning
administrator may extend the time for substantial construction progress to be made by up to 180
calendar days, for good cause shown. This provision shall not be applicable, however, for time
periods for projects in conditional zoning districts, which shall be governed by subsection 36-
84(e), or special use permits, which shall be governed by article IX.

( Ord. of 8-21-2017(1) , § 1(Exh. A)) 

19

http://newords.municode.com/readordinance.aspx?ordinanceid=845895&datasource=ordbank


Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Technical Review 
Committee 

Prepared January 2020 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

In both the subdivision and zoning portions of the action plan based on stated goals within the 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan, there is a call for the creation of a technical review committee (TRC) for 
the review of minor and major subdivisions and certain zoning reviews. As you will see in the proposed 
text amendment, a formalized TRC has been created and inserted into certain sections of municipal 
ordinance to ensure that proper plan reviews are occurring and the Planning and Zoning Board, as well 
as Town Council, are provided an opinion from various member of staff based upon the committee’s 
findings of compliance with various sections of municipal ordinance and relevant federal and state laws, 
rules and regulations.  

Existing Conditions 

Beginning with my employment with the Town I established an informal 
TRC with the Fire Marshal and Public Works Director to review certain 
subdivisions and zoning permit approvals. In short, the proposed text 
amendment would formalize a practice already being adhered to. 

20



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER:  

ATTACHMENTS: 

January 27, 2020 

Lake Louise Public Fishing Access Project 

Town Manager/Public Works Director 

Public Fishing Access Area Site Plan 
Memorandum of Agreement 
Photo of Similar Fishing Pier at Lake Julian

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

For many years the Town has maintained Lake Louise as a fishing lake and this 
recreational amenity is well used by the Town’s residents and visitors.  

NC Wildlife Resources Commission encourages and assists with improving public fishing 
access across the State of North Carolina. The NC Wildlife Resources Commission has and 
will continue to stock Lake Louise with a variety of types and sizes of fish. To improve 
public fishing access on Lake Louise, including for those with mobility issues, the Wildlife 
Resources Commission wishes to construct, at its sole expense, an ADA accessible floating 
fishing pier on Lake Louise.   

The site plan for the pier is attached as is a memorandum of agreement. The Town will 
continue to be responsible for maintenance of the park and its grounds, including the 
public fishing access area, but is only required to make minor repairs on the fishing pier. 
The Town Manager and Public Works Director recommend approval of this project. The 
Town Attorney has reviewed the memorandum of agreement and has not noted any legal 
concerns.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to approve the Lake Louise Public Fishing Access Project and 
authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute the Memorandum of Agreement. The following 
motion could be used for that purpose:

I move that we approve the Lake Louise Public Fishing Access Project and authorize 
the Mayor and Town Clerk to execute the Memorandum of Agreement and deliver it 
to the Wildlife Resources Commission. 

21



22



23



 1 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

NORTH CAROLINA WILDLIFE RESOURCES COMMISSION 
AND  

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ___ day of ______________, 2020, 
by and between the North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission, hereinafter called the 
Commission, and the Town of Weaverville, hereinafter called the Town; 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
Whereas, the Commission is authorized to create and improve public fishing access in inland 
waters for the benefit of the anglers of North Carolina; and 
 
Whereas, it is desirable for the Commission to improve public fishing access at Lake Louise 
Park owned and controlled by the Town; and 
 
Whereas, it is desirable for the Town to increase the recreational opportunities for the public by 
cooperating with the Commission to improve angler access at Lake Louise Park; 
 
Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual advantages likely to result from this Agreement 
and the respective obligations assumed herein, 
 
A. The COMMISSION agrees, at its sole expense: 
 

1. To design and construct a universally designed fishing access area at a mutually agreed 
upon site at Lake Louise Park; 

 
2. To serve as the manager of the construction project, applying for, complying with, and 

receiving all permits necessary for the fishing access project at the Lake Louise Park that 
shall consist of improvements to the existing parking area and foot path, a proposed 
fishing pier, ADA parking, and accessible route to the pier. All improvements will be 
built and installed according to Commission standards; 
 

3. To provide construction drawings of the fishing access project at the Lake Louise Park 
for review, revision and approval of the Town prior to construction; 

 
4. To provide construction materials (e.g., lumber, hardware, floats, chain, gravel, concrete, 

etc.) and personnel for construction of the fishing access project at the Lake Louise Park; 
 
5. To be responsible for future necessary repairs to the fishing pier that require design 

consultation or pier section replacement;     
 

24



 2 

6. To provide and install a kiosk and signage identifying the Lake Louise Public Fishing 
Access; 

 
7. To remove any existing improvements such as signs, park benches and trash cans that are 

currently located in the construction area and reinstall or replace at a nearby location as 
approved by the Town; and 

 
8. To include the Lake Louise Public Fishing Access on patrols of Commission Wildlife 

Enforcement Officers. 
 
B. The TOWN agrees, at its sole expense: 
 

1. To permit Commission personnel engaged in planning, construction or post-construction 
work, and stocking activities access to Lake Louise Public Fishing Access area; 

 
2. To provide any additional signs for posting on the fishing pier or kiosk at the Lake Louise 

Park for review, revision and approval of the Commission prior to installation; 
 

3. To be responsible for any repairs that do not require design consultation or pier section 
replacement.  Such repairs include but are not limited to single board replacement and 
rail repairs to the fishing pier; 
 

4. To maintain the grounds surrounding the site, providing appropriate outdoor trash 
receptacles, keeping the grass mowed at regular intervals year-round, and litter removed 
regularly; 

 
5. To ensure that the Commission is recognized in all press releases, brochures and, 

advertisements developed by the Town concerning visitation and usage of Lake Louise 
Public Fishing Access area; 

 
6. To permit fishing by the general public at the Lake Louise Public Fishing Access area; 

 
7. To take affirmative action in complying with all Federal and State requirements 

concerning fair employment and employment of people with disabilities, and concerning 
the treatment of all employees without regard to discrimination by reason of race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin or disability; and 
 

8. To comply with all laws, ordinances, codes, rules, regulations, and licensing requirements 
that are applicable to the conduct of its business and its performance in accordance with 
this Agreement including those of federal, state, and local agencies having jurisdiction 
and/or authority. 

 
C. It is mutually agreed: 
 

1. That Lake Louise Public Fishing Access is the formal name of the access area; 
 

25



 3 

2. The purpose of the Lake Louise Public Fishing Access is to provide public access for 
fishing. It is unlawful to use any Public Fishing Access for purposes other than fishing as 
stated in 15A NCAC 10E .0104(f); 

 
3. That the fishing pier becomes property of the Town after construction is completed; 
 
4. That fishing regulations and licenses, as required by state law, shall be jointly publicized 

and enforced by the Commission; 
 
5. That nothing in this Agreement shall obligate either party to any conditions not 

specifically stated herein; 
 
6. That this Agreement shall become effective as soon as it is signed and dated by both 

parties and shall continue in effect for 25 years from the date of signing; 
 
7. That either party may terminate its involvement in this Agreement by written notice to 

the other at least 90 days in advance of the date on which termination is to become 
effective. If the termination request is made by the Town, the Town agrees to refund the 
Commission a pro-rated portion of the funds used to construct and the fishing access area 
project based on the 25-year life expectancy of the fishing access area; 
 

8. That during and after the term hereof, the State Auditor and any using agency’s internal 
auditors shall have access to persons and records related to this Agreement to verify 
accounts and data affecting fees or performance under the Agreement, as provided in 
G.S. 143-49(9). 
 

9. That the Town shall hold and save the Commission, its officers, agents, and employees, 
harmless from liability of any kind, including all claims and losses accruing or resulting 
to any other person, firm, or corporation furnishing or supplying work, services, 
materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of this Agreement, and from 
any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting to any person, firm, or corporation that 
may be injured or damaged by the Town in the performance of this Agreement and that 
are attributable to the negligence or intentionally tortious acts of the Town.  The Town 
represents and warrants that it shall make no claim of any kind or nature against the 
Commission’s agents who are involved in any planning, construction or post-
construction work, and stocking activities.  The representation and warranty in the 
preceding sentence shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 

10. This Agreement and any documents incorporated specifically by reference represent the 
entire agreement between the parties and supersede all prior oral or written statements or 
agreements; 
 

11. This Agreement may be amended only by a written amendment duly executed by the 
Commission and the Town; 
 

12. The failure to enforce or the waiver by the Commission of any right or an event of 
breach or default on one occasion or instance shall not constitute the waiver of such right, 
breach or default on any subsequent occasion or instance; 

26



 4 

 
13. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default of its obligations hereunder if and so long 

as it is prevented from performing such obligations as a result of events beyond its 
reasonable control, including without limitation, fire, power failures, any act of war, 
hostile foreign action, nuclear explosion, riot, strikes or failures or refusals to perform 
under subcontracts, civil insurrection, earthquake, hurricane, tornado, or other 
catastrophic natural event or act of God; 
 

14. That notwithstanding any other term or provision in this contract, nothing herein is 
intended nor shall be interpreted as waiving any claim or defense based on the principle 
of sovereign immunity that otherwise would be available to the Commission under 
applicable law. 

 
In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and year of the last 
signatory. 
 

Approved and agreed to: 
 
N.C. Wildlife Resources Commission 
 
__________________________________  __________________________________ 
Gordon Myers        Date   Gary Gardner, Chief      Date 
Executive Director     Engineering Section Chief 
 
 
 
Town of Weaverville     
 
__________________________________   
Allan P. Root, Mayor      Date   
Town of Weaverville   
 

ATTEST       
 

______________________________   
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk    

 Town of Weaverville 
 

___________________________     
Date         

27



28



29



30



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: January 27, 2020 

Subject: Budget Amendment – Police Department 

Presenter:  Town Finance Director 

Attachments: Budget Amendment Form  

Description: 

The Town collected an additional $70.00 in Pink Patch Project donations & proceeds 

from November 2019 – December 2019.   

The Town collected an additional $11,465.56 in Cops for Kids donations from November 

2019 – December 2019. 

The attached budget amendment is necessary so that the Police Department can spend the 

funds in the current fiscal year. 

Action Requested: 

Town Manager recommends approval of the attached Budget Amendment. 

31



Budget Amendment FY 2019-2020 

Town of Weaverville 

 

What expense accounts are to be increased? 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-430-431-26609  Pink Patch Project (Expenditure)  $70.00 
010-430-431-26608  Cops for Kids (Expenditure)  $11,465.56 
     
     
     
     

 

What expense account(s) are to be decreased or additional revenue expected to offset expense? 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-004-300-09029  Pink Patch Project (Revenue)                           $70.00 
010-004-300-09028  Cops for Kids (Revenue)                     $11,465.56 
     
     
     
     

 

Justification:  Please provide a brief justification for this budget amendment.  Pink Patch 
Project donations collected from Nov 2019 – Dec 2019; Cops for Kids donations collected from          
Nov 2019 – Dec 2019. 

    
Authorized by Finance Officer  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Manager  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Council (if applicable)  Date  

 

 
Budget Ordinance Section 7: 

B. The Budget Officer or his/her designee is hereby authorized to distribute departmental funds based upon the line 
item budgets and make expenditures therefrom, in accordance with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

C. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may authorize transfers between line items, expenditures and revenues, 
within a department or division without limitation and without a report being required.  

D. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may transfer amounts up to 5%, but not to exceed $10,000 monthly, between 
departments, including contingency appropriations, but only within the same fund. The Budget Officer must make 
an official report on such transfers at a subsequent regular meeting of Town Council. 

E. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as approved by Town 
Council, as a budget amendment.  

 

32



Town of Weaverville 

Town Council Agenda Item 

Date of Meeting: Monday, January 27, 2020 

Subject: Town Manager’s Monthly Report 

Presenter:  Town Manager Selena Coffey 

Attachments:  Monthly Report 

Description:  

Attached please find the monthly Town Manager’s Report. 

Action Requested: 

No action necessary. 

33



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

Town Manager’s Monthly Report 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 

January 2020 

1) Martin Luther King Jr. Observance Update:  Our recent MLK Day Observance was successful.  We had
approximately 35 in attendance and approximately 20 children from the Christine W. Avery Learning Center
perform for us.

2) 2020 July 4 Downtown:  We have confirmed our fireworks purchase and I have spoken with the Schools’
Superintendent and Principal Chandler who have approved our use of the Weaverville Primary School
baseball field for staging the fireworks this year.  Based on input from Town Council and the community, we
have adjusted the time for the fireworks this year to a 9:45pm display.  I have also confirmed our band,
Devils in Dust, for the event.  We’ve had countless compliments on this group as they bring a variety of
cover music from various decades and some of their original tunes.

3) Community Center Construction Update:  As you’re aware, we will be presenting and recommending a
construction plan for the community center at the January 27 meeting. I will be reaching out to the Mayor
and Town Council in the very near future to ascertain your availability for a ground-breaking. We’ve made
some exciting progress on this front and I look forward to seeing some ground move, as I know you are!

4) 2nd Saturday Summer Series Update:  I have now confirmed bands for each of our 2nd Saturday Summer
Series events.  These are as follows:

• June 13:  Up Jumped Three, a jazz trio
• July 11:  The Barsters, variety of string music (Rob Mangum is in this band)
• August 8:  Lillian Chase and the Deadpan String Band, a bluegrass band
• September 12:  Nick Chandler and Delivered, a bluegrass band

5) Greenway Project Update: The Request for Letters of Interest for planning on our greenway is public, with
a deadline date of January 31, 2020. Doug Dearth and I will continue to keep you updated.

6) February Town Council Meeting Location Change: Although we attempted to plan well for the elections
process this year, we weren’t aware that the Board of Elections will need the use of our community
room/council changes from February 12 – 29. Because they must secure the voting locations, we must
change our February Town Council meeting and we have secured the Fire Department Training Room for
this Council meeting.

7) Citizens Academy:  Last week was the first session of the 2020 Citizens Academy.  Jan Lawrence provided
an insightful presentation on the history of Weaverville, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson provided a legal
overview of municipal government, Finance Director Tonya Dozier presented information on the Town’s
finances and I gave a general presentation of Town leadership and the budget process.  We had 18 in
attendance and I feel that everyone enjoyed the session. The next session is on Land Use and Code
Enforcement, which will be on February 20 at the Fire Department.

34



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2020 

SUBJECT: Community Center Project 

PRESENTER:  Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: Architect’s Recommendation and Certified Bid Tabulation 
Capital Project Ordinance 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town received bids on the Community Center Project on January 22 (see certified bid 
tabulation) and the Town Manager and Architect recommend awarding the bid to Goforth 
Builders, a local contractor who submitted the low bid of $2,779,000. This bid amount is over 
the $2.5 million that Town Council previously approved for the construction cost but the 
architect believes that there may be some cost savings that could be achieved through some 
value engineering with the contractor. The Town Manager suggests that Town Council award 
the bid and approve the contract based on the bid amount but direct that staff negotiate with 
the contractor in an effort to find cost reductions totaling 5% of the bid amount or greater. 
The Town Manager has spoken to the committee members and all are in agreement with her 
recommendation. The Town Attorney and Public Works Director have reviewed the Contract 
Documents. These Contract Documents are voluminous so they are not reproduced with this 
agenda item but are available for review with the Town Attorney. 

Town Council is asked to consider a capital project ordinance (see attached) which allows the 
Town to properly manage this project from a financial perspective by separating it out of the 
Town’s general fund budget. This also allows the financial administration of the project to 
cross multiple fiscal years so that all revenues and expenditures can be more easily budgeted, 
tracked, and accounted for.  As a reminder, at its meeting on July 15, 2019, Town Council 
voted unanimously to provide a budget of approximately $2.5 million for the construction cost 
of the Community Center (Phase 1) and an additional $250,000 for outdoor recreational 
amenities (Phase 2). The attached capital project ordinance incorporates the lowest bid 
amount together with the other project costs and can be revised by Town Council at any time.  

Upon taking the actions recommended below, staff will be ready to move this project forward 
so that construction can begin shortly. 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Manager recommends that Town Council take action to do the following: (1) award of 
the construction bid to Goforth Builders and approve the execution of the Construction 
Documents for a negotiated amount not to exceed $2,779,000; (2) direct staff and Goforth 
Builders to look at value engineering in an effort to identify cost reductions totaling 5% of the 
bid or greater and adjust the contract lump sum amount accordingly; and (3) adopt the 
Capital Project Ordinance.  

35



 

 

Memo  
 
Date:  January 23, 2020 
 
To:   Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM, Town Manager, Town of Weaverville 
   Dale Pennell, PE, PLS, Public Works Director, Town of Weaverville 
   Jennifer O. Jackson, Town Attorney, Town of Weaverville 
 
From:  John Legerton, AIA, LEED AP BD+C, President, Legerton Architecture, P.A. 
 
Subject: Weaverville Community Center Bid Tabulation and Recommendations  
 
Five bids were received yesterday, January 22, 2020, for the General Contract Work for the 
construction of the new Weaverville Community Center. Attached is the copy of the certified 
Bid Tabulation summary of the bids received. We have reviewed the submittals from all five of 
the bidders and it appears that all bidders included all of  the required documents with their bid 
submittals. 
 
After reviewing these results, our recommendations are that the Town of Weaverville: 
 
(1) Accept the low Base Bid amount of $2,779,000.00 from Goforth Builders, and proceed with 

negotiations, as required, to finalize an Owner Contractor Agreement for the construction of 
the new Weaverville Community Center with Goforth Builders. 
 

(2) Reject the Alternate #1bid amount of $5,600.00 from Goforth Builders and not proceed with 
this alternate o#1 option. 

 
(3) Budget a contingency of 5.0% of the Base Bid amount for any contingencies that may arise 

as the construction proceeds. 
 
If you have any questions about these recommendations or the certified Bid Tabulation, please 
let us know as soon as possible. We look forward to seeing the construction begin soon for this 
long awaited new community center for the Town of Weaverville. 

36



B
id

 T
ab

ul
at

io
n 

C
er

ifi
ca

tio
n:

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
te

r

O
w

ne
r:

T
ow

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e

B
id

 D
at

e:
W

ed
ne

sd
ay

, J
an

ua
ry

 2
2,

 2
02

0
B

id
 O

pe
ni

ng
:

2:
00

 P
M

 L
oc

al
 T

im
e 

at
 th

e 
W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
T

ow
n 

H
al

l

U
ni

t P
ri

ce
 #

1
U

ni
t P

ri
ce

 #
2

U
ni

t P
ri

ce
 #

3
U

ni
t P

ri
ce

 #
4

U
ni

t P
ri

ce
 #

5
U

ni
t P

ri
ce

 #
6

U
ni

t P
ri

ce
 #

7
U

ni
t P

ri
ce

 #
8

U
ni

t P
ri

ce
 #

9

#
G

en
er

al
 S

ite
 R

oc
k 

Ex
ca

va
tio

n 
$/

cu
.y

d.

G
en

er
al

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
A

re
a 

R
oc

k 
Ex

ca
va

tio
n 

$/
cu

.y
d.

Fo
ot

in
g 

R
oc

k 
Ex

ca
va

tio
n 

$/
cu

.y
d.

U
til

ity
 T

re
nc

h 
R

oc
k 

Ex
ca

va
tio

n 
$/

cu
.y

d.

R
em

ov
al

 o
f 

U
ns

at
isf

ac
to

ry
 S

oi
l 

$/
cu

.y
d.

Pr
ov

id
e 

C
om

pa
ct

ed
 

Ea
rt

h 
Fi

ll 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

$/
cu

.y
d.

Pr
ov

id
e 

W
as

he
d 

St
on

e 
B

ac
kf

ill
 in

 
Pl

ac
e 

$/
cu

.y
d.

C
ut

tin
g 

T&
G

 a
nd

 
ch

am
fe

r 
jo

in
ts

 o
n 

w
or

m
y 

ch
es

tn
ut

 
$/

lin
.ft

.

Pl
an

e,
 sa

nd
, s

ta
in

, 
&

 se
al

 w
or

m
y 

ch
es

tn
ut

 b
oa

rd
s 

$/
lin

.ft
.

1
41

45
1

$2
,9

24
,2

62
.0

0
5%

$3
00

.0
0

$3
00

.0
0

$3
00

.0
0

$3
00

.0
0

$2
0.

00
$3

0.
00

$3
5.

00
$1

2.
00

$3
.0

0

2
73

25
0

$3
,4

34
,3

96
.0

0
5%

$8
5.

00
$8

5.
00

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$2
0.

00
$2

0.
00

$4
3.

00
$2

.0
0

$3
.0

0

3
18

$3
,2

15
,2

80
.0

0
5%

$4
8.

00
$4

8.
00

$4
8.

00
$4

8.
00

$1
8.

00
$1

8.
00

$6
0.

00
$4

.0
0

$4
.0

0

4
24

29
4

$2
,7

79
,0

00
.0

0
5%

$1
95

.0
0

$1
95

.0
0

$2
35

.0
0

$2
35

.0
0

$1
5.

00
$1

5.
00

$4
8.

00
$0

.5
0

$1
.2

5

5
11

45
$3

,5
77

,0
00

.0
0

5%
$3

00
.0

0
$3

00
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
$5

00
.0

0
$3

5.
00

$2
5.

00
$9

5.
00

$6
0.

00
$1

00
.0

0

U
ni

t P
ri

ce
 #

10
U

ni
t P

ri
ce

 #
11

A
lte

rn
at

e 
#1

 

#
Pr

ov
id

e 
4"

-6
" 

fie
ld

 
st

on
e 

to
 m

at
ch

 
ex

ist
in

g 
$/

to
n

Pr
ov

id
e 

2"
 th

ic
k 

st
on

e 
ve

ne
er

 c
ut

 fr
om

 
4"

-6
" 

st
on

e 
$/

to
n

Pr
ov

id
e 

A
lte

rn
at

e 
W

oo
d 

A
co

us
tic

al
 

C
ei

lin
g

1
$2

50
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
$ 

2,
26

5 
D

ED
U

CT
D

irt
 W

or
x

Ca
ro

lin
a 

Sp
ec

ia
lti

es
 

Co
ns

tru
ct

io
n

Ca
ro

lin
a 

Sp
ec

ia
lti

es
 

Co
ns

tru
ct

io
n

St
ee

p 
Cr

ee
k 

St
on

ew
or

ks
Be

nt
on

 R
oo

fin
g

H
ay

ne
s P

lu
m

bi
ng

Py
at

t H
ea

tin
g 

an
d 

A
ir 

Co
nd

iti
on

in
g

H
ay

ne
s E

le
ct

ric
al

2
$1

48
.7

5
$5

00
.0

0
$ 

5,
95

8 
 A

D
D

JL
S

JL
S

Th
or

sla
nd

 C
on

cr
et

e
St

ee
p 

Cr
ee

k 
St

on
ew

or
ks

Ca
rte

r L
um

be
r

M
B 

H
ay

ne
s

Se
rv

ic
e 

To
da

y
M

B 
H

ay
ne

s

3
$2

50
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
$ 

2,
26

5 
D

ED
U

CT
D

irt
 W

or
x

D
irt

 W
or

x
Fo

rtu
ne

's 
G

ra
di

ng
 

an
d 

Fo
ot

in
g

St
ee

p 
Cr

ee
k 

St
on

ew
or

ks
El

ev
at

e 
Ro

of
in

g 
an

d 
Ex

te
rio

rs
TP

 H
ow

ar
ds

 
Pl

um
bi

ng
Py

at
t H

ea
tin

g 
an

d 
A

ir 
Co

nd
iti

on
in

g
H

ay
ne

s E
le

ct
ric

al

4
$2

21
.2

0
$1

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
5,

60
0 

A
D

D
D

irt
 W

or
x

D
irt

 W
or

x
G

oF
or

th
 B

ui
ld

er
s

W
rig

ht
 S

to
ne

G
oF

or
th

 B
ui

ld
er

s
Bo

lto
n 

Pl
um

bi
ng

Py
at

t H
ea

tin
g 

an
d 

A
ir 

Co
nd

iti
on

in
g

G
rig

g 
El

ec
tri

c

5
$2

50
.0

0
$4

00
.0

0
$ 

3,
00

0 
A

D
D

M
oo

re
 &

 S
on

M
oo

re
 &

 S
on

La
sti

ng
 Im

pr
es

sio
ns

St
ee

p 
Cr

ee
k 

St
on

ew
or

ks
Ci

ty
sc

ap
e

H
ay

ne
s P

lu
m

bi
ng

Py
at

t H
ea

tin
g 

an
d 

A
ir 

Co
nd

iti
on

in
g

G
rig

g 
El

ec
tri

c

Th
es

e 
bi

ds
 w

er
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 o
n 

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, J

an
ua

ry
 2

2,
 2

02
0 

an
d 

re
ad

 a
lo

ud
 p

ub
lic

ly
.

C
er

tif
ie

d 
by

:

  
  
0
1
/2

2
/2

0
2
0

 J
oh

n 
Le

ge
rt

on
,  

A
IA

,  
LE

ED
 A

P 
 B

D
+C

 P
re

sid
en

t, 
Le

ge
rt

on
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 P
.A

. 
 D

at
e:

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
22

, 2
02

0

Fi
rs

t V
ic

to
ry

, I
nc

.

B
id

 B
on

d
B

id
de

r 
N

am
e

H
ic

ko
ry

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

om
pa

ny

C
ar

ol
in

a 
Sp

ec
ia

lti
es

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

B
as

e 
B

id
 

Li
ce

ns
e 

#

Fr
an

k 
L 

B
lu

m
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

pa
ny

G
oF

or
th

 B
ui

ld
er

s

M
as

on
ry

 W
or

k 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r

Pl
um

bi
ng

 W
or

k 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r

Fi
rs

t V
ic

to
ry

, I
nc

.

Fr
an

k 
L 

B
lu

m
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

pa
ny

G
oF

or
th

 B
ui

ld
er

s

H
ic

ko
ry

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

om
pa

ny

Si
te

 U
til

ity
 W

or
k 

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r
C

on
cr

et
e 

W
or

k 
  

Su
bc

on
tr

ac
to

r

C
ar

ol
in

a 
Sp

ec
ia

lti
es

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n

Si
te

 G
ra

di
ng

 W
or

k 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r

B
id

de
r 

N
am

e
El

ec
tr

ic
al

 W
or

k 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r

H
V

A
C

 W
or

k 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r

R
oo

fin
g 

W
or

k 
Su

bc
on

tr
ac

to
r

37



Page 1 
 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  

FOR THE WEAVERVILLE COMMUNITY CENTER PROJECT 

BE IT ORDAINED by Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, North Carolina, that, 
pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following 
capital project ordinance is hereby adopted: 

Section 1. The project authorized is to be known as the “Community Center Project” and 
consists of the construction of a new community center and improved restrooms within the Lake 
Louise Park. 

Section 2.  The Town Manager, Finance Officer/Director, Public Works Director and other 
officers and employees are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project within the terms 
and provisions of Chapter 159 of the North Carolina General Statutes and the budget contained 
herein. 

Section 3. The following revenues and resources are anticipated to be available to complete 
the project activities: 

Transfer from General Fund –Eller Cove 
Conservation Easement Proceeds 

 $550,000 

Transfer from General Fund  $3,043,691 
Revenues from Donations  $TBD 
   

Total Project Revenues  $3,594,040 

Section 4. The following expenditures are hereby appropriated for the project activities: 

PHASE 1 – COMMUNITY CENTER 
Construction   $2,779,000 
Architecture Fees  $238,555 
Engineering Fees  $61,811 
Surveys & Geotechnical Engineering/Testing  $31,150 
Fixtures & Equipment  
(Security System & Audio/Visual System) 

 $92,074 

Permit Fees  $2,500 
Contingency (5% of const costs)  $138,950 
Total Phase 1 Project Expenses  $3,344,040 
   

PHASE 2 – OUTDOOR RECREATION 
Total Phase 2 Project Expenses  $250,000 
   

Total Project Expenses - Phase 1 and 2  $3,594,040 

Section 5. The Town of Weaverville Finance Office is hereby directed to maintain within the 
Capital Project Fund established with this ordinance, sufficient detailed accounting records to 
provide accounting information as required by Chapter 159 of the North Carolina General 
Statutes. 

38



Page 2 
 

Section 6.  The Budget Officer and/or Finance Officer is directed to include a detailed 
analysis of past and future costs and revenues of this capital project in every budget submission 
made to Town Council.  

Section 7. The Finance Officer is directed to report at least quarterly on the financial status of 
each project element in Section 4 and the revenues received or expected on the project. 

Section 8. The Town Manager is hereby authorized and empowered to execute any and all 
documents necessary to commence, carry out, and complete the capital project set forth herein 
without any further direction, authorization, or consent, including without limitation any and all 
contract documents, change orders, or any other such documents as may be necessary to give 
direction to engineers, contractors, and others in completing this capital project, subject to 
compliance with law.  

Section 9. The Town Manager is authorized to transfer expenditures within any line item of 
this capital project ordinance except for the contingency line item, as she, in her discretion, 
deems necessary and if allowable by law. Funds budgeted within the continency line item cannot 
be expended without Town Council approval. 

Section 10. The Town Manager shall from time to time report to Town Council as they shall 
direct as to the status of completion of the capital project and/or the status of the budget for the 
capital project. 

Section 11. Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Clerk, the 
Budget Officer, and the Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this project. 

 Section 12. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption but shall not be 
codified. 

ADOPTED THIS the ______ day of January, 2020, by a vote of ____ in favor and ___ against. 

 
__________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor  

ATTESTED BY:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
_________________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk  JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney  

39



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2020 

SUBJECT: Waterline Extension Project 

PRESENTER:  Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: Recommendation with Certified Bid Tabulation 
Bid Documents from Low Bidder and Construction Contract 
Capital Project Ordinance adopted 2/25/2019 
Amended and Restated Capital Project Ordinance  

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Town received and opened bids on the Waterline Extension Project on January 15, 2020, with 
the results being shown on the certified bid tabulation. The good news is that several of the bids 
were under the budget established by the Capital Project Ordinance that was adopted by Town 
Council on February 25, 2019.  

Staff and the engineering firm of Withers Ravenel have reviewed the bids and recommend award to 
Hyatt Pipeline, LLC, the lowest responsive bidder, with a total bid amount of $1,954,143, and 
approval of the construction contract consistent with the bid.  The bid documents submitted by 
Hyatt Pipeline are attached. The construction contract, also attached, is for a stipulated sum and has 
been approved by the USDA and Town Attorney.  

This project is contingent upon approval of the interim financing and issuance of USDA revenue 
bonds by the Local Government Commission (LGC). Consistent with Town Council’s action on 
October 21, 2019, staff continues to work towards the submission of the LGC application for 
approval of the funding of this project with a deadline of February 3rd for a March 4th meeting of the 
LGC. The next steps for Town Council will be the consideration of and action to approve the interim 
financing and the later issuance of the revenue bonds which should occur at the Town Council 
meeting on February 24th. Any award of the bid/contract should be conditioned upon LGC approval. 

One of the items that must be presented to the LGC is a final project budget. If this bid is accepted, 
then the Capital Project Ordinance must be updated to reflect the actual cost of construction so that 
it can serve as the final project budget.  USDA recommends that the total budget for the project stay 
the same at this point so that a portion of the $2.8 million in bonds is not de-obligated at this early 
stage. The cost savings due to the under-budget bid has been added to the contingency line item 
entitled “Contingency – Other”.  To protect to ensure that this money is not spent unnecessarily, the 
capital project ordinance does not allow the use of the “Contingency – Other” funds without specific 
Town Council approval. At the end of the project the bond will be issued only in the amount that the 
Town actually needed to complete the project, which should be less than $2.8 million. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

The Town Manager recommends that Town Council take action to: (1) award the construction bid 
to Hyatt Pipeline, LLC, in the amount of $1,954,143, and approve the construction contract and its 
execution, all contingent upon LGC approval of the interim financing and later issuance of the USDA 
revenue bonds, and (2) adopt the Amended and Restated Capital Project Ordinance. 

40



41



42



TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

EA
V

ER
V

IL
LE

W
A

T
ER

 S
Y

ST
EM

 IM
P

R
O

V
EM

EN
TS

 

It
em

 N
o.

It
em

 D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

U
ni

t
Es

t.
 Q

ua
n.

 U
ni

t 
P

ri
ce

 
Ex

te
nd

ed
 P

ri
ce

 U
ni

t 
P

ri
ce

 
Ex

te
nd

ed
 P

ri
ce

 U
ni

t 
P

ri
ce

 
Ex

te
nd

ed
 P

ri
ce

 U
ni

t 
P

ri
ce

 
Ex

te
nd

ed
 P

ri
ce

 U
ni

t 
P

ri
ce

 
Ex

te
nd

ed
 P

ri
ce

 U
ni

t 
P

ri
ce

 
Ex

te
nd

ed
 P

ri
ce

1
M

ob
ili

za
ti

on
LS

1
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
1,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
1,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 7

3,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  7

3,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
3,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
3,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 3

2,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  3

2,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

8,
07

9.
17

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  5

8,
07

9.
17

 

2
12

-I
nc

h 
P

re
ss

ur
e 

C
la

ss
 3

50
 D

uc
til

e 
Ir

on
 W

at
er

 
Li

ne
LF

16
,4

00
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  6
2.

20
 

 $
   

   
   

 1
,0

20
,0

80
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  8
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,3

12
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  6
7.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

 1
,0

98
,8

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  8
2.

65
 

 $
   

   
   

   
1,

35
5,

46
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

68
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

1,
11

5,
20

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  6
4.

65
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,0

60
,2

60
.0

0 

2
12

-I
nc

h 
P

re
ss

ur
e 

C
la

ss
 3

50
 D

uc
til

e 
Ir

on
 W

at
er

 
Li

ne
 w

it
h 

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
lly

 R
es

tr
ai

ne
d 

Jo
in

ts
LF

40
0

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  7

6.
64

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

0,
65

6.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  8

2.
70

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

3,
08

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
0.

95
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  6
0,

38
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

81
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  3

2,
40

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  9
1.

24
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  3
6,

49
6.

00
 

3
14

-I
nc

h 
H

D
P

E 
In

st
al

le
d 

by
 H

D
D

 -
 O

lli
e 

W
ea

ve
r 

R
oa

d
LF

12
5

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
42

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

2,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

41
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  5
1,

25
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
68

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 8

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

55
9.

25
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  6
9,

90
6.

25
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  6

2,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

82
8.

74
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

03
,5

92
.5

0 

4
14

-I
nc

h 
H

D
P

E 
In

st
al

le
d 

by
 H

D
D

 -
 C

la
rk

s 
C

ha
pe

l 
R

oa
d

LF
19

5
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

95
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

85
,2

50
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

41
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  7
9,

95
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
68

3.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
33

,1
85

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
54

9.
15

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
10

7,
08

4.
25

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  9
7,

50
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
80

2.
97

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
56

,5
79

.1
5 

5
12

-I
nc

h 
G

at
e 

V
al

ve
EA

30
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

87
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 8
6,

25
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
20

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
94

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 8

8,
35

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

14
8.

60
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

12
4,

45
8.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
70

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  8

1,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

43
0.

93
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  7
2,

92
7.

90
 

6
6-

In
ch

 G
at

e 
V

al
ve

EA
3

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
70

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
10

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

40
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 7

,2
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
35

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
05

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

06
4.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

,1
92

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
,5

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

96
9.

72
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,9
09

.1
6 

7
20

-I
nc

h 
x 

12
-I

nc
h 

Ta
pp

in
g 

Sl
ee

ve
 a

nd
 V

al
ve

EA
1

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

8,
40

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

8,
40

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  4
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

3,
13

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

3,
13

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
9,

10
3.

70
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
9,

10
3.

70
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

7,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

7,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
9,

21
2.

91
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
9,

21
2.

91
 

8
A

ir
 R

el
ea

se
 V

al
ve

 A
ss

em
bl

y
EA

6
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

01
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
2,

09
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

8,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

67
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
6,

05
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
70

8.
45

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

6,
25

0.
70

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

50
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
5,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
20

1.
63

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

3,
20

9.
78

 
9

Fi
re

 H
yd

ra
nt

 A
ss

em
bl

y
EA

35
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

81
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

68
,5

25
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

20
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

82
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

57
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

30
,1

25
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

88
0.

07
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

17
0,

80
2.

45
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
17

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

87
5.

21
 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

70
,6

32
.3

5 
10

B
lo

w
of

f 
A

ss
em

bl
y

EA
5

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
80

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

4,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
5,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
78

3.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

8,
91

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

88
8.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
4,

44
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

45
5.

46
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
7,

27
7.

30
 

11
D

uc
til

e 
Ir

on
 F

it
ti

ng
s

LB
S

16
,0

00
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 3

.8
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 6
1,

60
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

6,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 9

.2
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
  1

48
,1

60
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

.8
6 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

14
1,

76
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
.5

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  4

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 0

.0
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
60

.0
0 

12
C

on
ne

ct
io

n 
To

 E
xi

st
in

g 
St

ub
-O

ut
EA

1
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

15
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

15
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

06
3.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

06
3.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
76

8.
13

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
,7

68
.1

3 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 4

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
58

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
,5

85
.0

0 

13
Ex

ca
va

ti
on

 a
nd

 S
lo

pe
 S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

fo
r 

Fi
re

 
H

yd
ra

nt
 In

st
al

la
ti

on
EA

3
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

60
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

80
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 9
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

77
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

31
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
56

0.
55

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
,6

81
.6

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

,5
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
15

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
,4

50
.0

0 

14
O

pe
n 

C
ut

 2
0"

 S
te

el
 C

as
in

g 
W

ith
 1

2"
 D

IP
 C

ar
ri

er
 

Pi
pe

LF
23

0
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
8.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 3
4,

04
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  9

2,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

23
6.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
4,

28
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
41

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  9

4,
30

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 3
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  6
9,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

5.
74

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  3

1,
22

0.
20

 

15
15

-I
nc

h 
R

C
P

 C
ul

ve
rt

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
LF

28
5

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  4

7.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

3,
39

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
8,

50
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  5

4.
20

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

5,
44

7.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
6.

50
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  3
0,

35
2.

50
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

4,
25

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  3
1.

66
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 9

,0
23

.1
0 

16
18

-I
nc

h 
R

C
P

 C
ul

ve
rt

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
LF

75
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  5
4.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

05
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 9
,3

75
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  5
9.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

42
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

1.
85

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 8
,3

88
.7

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
55

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 4

,1
25

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  3

4.
10

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
,5

57
.5

0 
17

A
sp

ha
lt 

D
ri

ve
 R

ep
ai

r
LF

43
0

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  4

8.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

0,
64

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
1,

50
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  4

2.
40

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

8,
23

2.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  1
9.

10
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

,2
13

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

5,
05

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  4
9.

50
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
1,

28
5.

00
 

18
G

ra
ve

l D
ri

ve
 R

ep
ai

r
LF

76
0

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
.5

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
18

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  3
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
6,

60
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  1

6.
70

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

2,
69

2.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
0.

08
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
5,

26
0.

80
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 7
,6

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 0

.0
1 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  7

.6
0 

19
C

on
cr

et
e 

D
riv

e 
R

ep
ai

r
SY

15
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

65
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 9
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

40
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
42

8.
75

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
,4

31
.2

5 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
70

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

,0
50

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
21

7.
80

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 3
,2

67
.0

0 
20

A
sp

ha
lt 

M
ill

in
g 

an
d 

O
ve

rla
y

SY
1,

37
0

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  2

6.
20

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 3

5,
89

4.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  4
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  5
4,

80
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  3

2.
90

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 4

5,
07

3.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  3
8.

40
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  5
2,

60
8.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

38
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  5

2,
06

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  3
5.

20
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  4
8,

22
4.

00
 

21
A

sp
ha

lt 
R

oa
dw

ay
 T

re
nc

h 
R

ep
ai

r 
- 

N
C

D
O

T 
R

oa
ds

LF
24

0
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  5
2.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
2,

48
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

1.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  3

6,
24

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
2.

60
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
7,

02
4.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  8

1.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

9,
44

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
35

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

,4
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  9

7.
78

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  2

3,
46

7.
20

 

22
R

oa
dw

ay
 T

re
nc

h 
R

ep
ai

r 
- 

no
n-

N
C

D
O

T 
R

oa
ds

LF
13

0
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  3
2.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
4,

16
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

1.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

9,
63

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  6
7.

60
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
8,

78
8.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  1

9.
05

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 2
,4

76
.5

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
35

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 4

,5
50

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  9

7.
78

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

2,
71

1.
40

 
23

Se
le

ct
 F

ill
C

Y
1,

00
0

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  1

8.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

8,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
9.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
9,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  2

8.
50

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

8,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  4
5.

28
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  4
5,

28
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
1.

50
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
1,

50
0.

00
 

24
R

oc
k 

Ex
ca

va
ti

on
C

Y
50

0
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
5,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  1

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
8.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 7
4,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  3

8.
36

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

9,
18

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

8.
50

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  7

4,
25

0.
00

 
25

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
A

B
C

 S
to

ne
TN

50
0

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  2

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

2,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  5
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
5,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  2

7.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

3,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
7.

86
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
3,

93
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

2,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
9.

90
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
4,

95
0.

00
 

26
Si

lt 
Fe

nc
e

LF
3,

70
0

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 3
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

1,
10

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
2,

20
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

4,
80

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 6

.1
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
2,

57
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  3
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

1,
10

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

.2
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 8

,1
40

.0
0 

27
Si

lt 
Fe

nc
e 

O
ut

le
t

EA
17

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
38

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  9
2.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

,5
64

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
27

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

4,
67

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  8
7.

75
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 1

,4
91

.7
5 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

50
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
,2

50
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
2.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,2
44

.0
0 

28
Pi

pe
 In

le
t 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n

EA
28

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  4

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
26

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  9
4.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,6
32

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
20

5.
50

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
75

4.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
4.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 4

,5
92

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

50
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 7
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 4

,6
20

.0
0 

29
C

he
ck

 D
am

EA
14

0
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  4
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

60
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  6

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 9
,1

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
6.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 2
8,

84
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  9

5.
50

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

3,
37

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
50

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
1,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  4

4.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 6
,1

60
.0

0 
30

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 D

it
ch

 L
in

in
g

LF
2,

60
0

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
60

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 7

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  1
8,

20
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 4
.5

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

1,
70

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  1
2.

60
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  3
2,

76
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  5
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  1

3,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

.2
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 5

,7
20

.0
0 

31
Si

te
 R

es
to

ra
ti

on
LS

1
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0,

72
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 1
0,

72
5.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 7

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  7

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
3,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
3,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 3

4,
10

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  3

4,
10

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 3
8,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  3
8,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 2

2,
46

9.
68

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  2

2,
46

9.
68

 

To
ta

l B
as

e 
B

id
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 1

,9
34

,0
55

.0
0 

To
ta

l B
as

e 
B

id
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,4
64

,2
41

.0
0 

To
ta

l B
as

e 
B

id
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,3
62

,3
48

.0
0 

To
ta

l B
as

e 
B

id
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  2

,5
49

,5
31

.6
8 

To
ta

l B
as

e 
B

id
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  2

,0
13

,5
35

.0
0 

To
ta

l B
as

e 
B

id
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,0
31

,1
87

.9
0 

It
em

 N
o.

A
lt

er
na

te
 It

em
 D

es
cr

ip
ti

on
U

ni
t

Es
t.

 Q
ua

n.
 U

ni
t 

P
ri

ce
 

Ex
te

nd
ed

 P
ri

ce
 U

ni
t 

P
ri

ce
 

Ex
te

nd
ed

 P
ri

ce
 U

ni
t 

P
ri

ce
 

Ex
te

nd
ed

 P
ri

ce
 U

ni
t 

P
ri

ce
 

Ex
te

nd
ed

 P
ri

ce
 U

ni
t 

P
ri

ce
 

Ex
te

nd
ed

 P
ri

ce
 U

ni
t 

P
ri

ce
 

Ex
te

nd
ed

 P
ri

ce

1
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
of

 M
on

ti
ce

llo
 R

d.
 a

nd
 O

lli
e 

W
ea

ve
r 

R
d 

- 
B

or
e 

an
d 

Ja
ck

 2
0"

 S
te

el
 C

as
in

g 
w

it
h 

12
" 

D
IP

 
C

ar
ri

er
 P

ip
e

LF
54

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
37

2.
00

  
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
88

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
80

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  4

3,
20

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

01
4.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

 5
4,

75
6.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
51

6.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  2

7,
86

4.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
7,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

7.
80

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  2

7,
42

1.
20

 

 T
ot

al
 A

lt
er

na
te

 B
id

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 2

0,
08

8.
00

 
 T

ot
al

 A
lt

er
na

te
 B

id
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  4
3,

20
0.

00
 

 T
ot

al
 A

lt
er

na
te

 B
id

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
 5

4,
75

6.
00

 
 T

ot
al

 A
lt

er
na

te
 B

id
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
7,

86
4.

00
 

 T
ot

al
 A

lt
er

na
te

 B
id

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
  2

7,
00

0.
00

 
 T

ot
al

 A
lt

er
na

te
 B

id
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

  2
7,

42
1.

20
 

 

Th
is

 is
 t

o 
ce

rt
if

y 
th

at
 t

he
 b

id
s 

ta
bu

la
te

d 
he

re
in

 w
er

e 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 o

pe
ne

d 
an

d 
re

ad
 a

lo
ud

 a
t 

2
:0

0 
p.

m
. o

n 
th

e 
15

th
 d

ay
 o

f 
Ja

nu
ar

y,
 2

02
0

, i
n 

th
e 

To
w

n 
H

al
l C

om
m

un
it

y 
R

oo
m

 a
t 

30
 S

. M
ai

n 
St

re
et

, W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e,

 N
or

th
 

an
d 

th
at

 s
ai

d 
bi

ds
 w

er
e 

ac
co

m
pa

ni
ed

 b
y 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le
 c

er
tif

ie
d 

bi
dd

er
's

 b
on

ds
 in

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

5%
 o

f 
th

e 
bi

d.

 T
ot

al
 B

id
 

 $
   

   
   

  1
,9

54
,1

43
.0

0 
 T

ot
al

 B
id

 
 $

   
   

   
   

2,
50

7,
44

1.
00

 
 T

ot
al

 B
id

 
 T

ot
al

 B
id

 
 $

   
   

   
   

2,
05

8,
60

9.
10

 
 $

   
   

   
  2

,4
17

,1
04

.0
0 

 T
ot

al
 B

id
 

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

,5
77

,3
95

.6
8 

To
ta

l B
id

 $
   

   
   

   
 2

,0
40

,5
35

.0
0 

R
oc

ky
 M

ou
nt

, N
C

 2
78

02

To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
H

ya
tt

 P
ip

el
in

e,
 L

LC
PO

 B
ox

 1
36

C
an

to
n,

 N
C

 2
87

16

C
en

tr
al

 B
ui

ld
er

s,
 In

c.
PO

 B
ox

 1
67

9

Th
e 

un
it

 p
ri

ce
 o

ri
gi

na
lly

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
bi

d 
fo

r 
th

is
 t

hi
s 

it
em

 w
as

 in
di

ca
tiv

e 
of

 a
 lu

m
p 

su
m

 a
m

ou
nt

.  
A

ft
er

 c
on

su
lta

ti
on

 w
ith

 t
he

 b
id

de
r, 

it 
w

as
 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

bi
dd

er
's

 e
xt

en
de

d 
pr

ic
e 

w
as

 c
or

re
ct

ly
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

bi
d 

fo
rm

 a
nd

 t
he

 u
ni

t 
pr

ic
e 

sh
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
or

re
ct

ed
 t

o 
re

fle
ct

 t
ha

t 
in

te
nt

io
n.

  B
as

ed
 o

n 
do

cu
m

en
ta

ti
on

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 t
he

 b
id

de
r, 

th
e 

un
it 

pr
ic

e 
fo

r 
th

is
 it

em
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
rr

ec
te

d 
to

 $
37

2.
00

.

C
oo

pe
r 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

om
pa

ny
, I

nc
.

PO
 B

ox
 8

06
H

en
de

rs
on

vi
lle

, N
C

 2
87

93

K
in

g 
G

en
er

al
 C

on
tr

ac
to

rs
, I

nc
.

PO
 B

ox
 1

62
78

B
ri

st
ol

, V
A

 2
42

09

M
er

ke
l B

ro
s.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n,
 In

c.
PO

 B
ox

 3
70

 -
 1

10
7 

M
ey

er
s 

St
re

et
G

re
en

ev
ill

e,
 T

N
 3

77
44

P
ie

dm
on

t 
U

ti
lit

y 
G

ro
up

, I
nc

.
68

1 
N

C
 1

20
 H

w
y

M
oo

re
sb

or
o,

 N
C

 2
81

14

*

*

Pa
ge

 1
 O

F 
1

43

emurawski
Stamp



Page 1 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  
FOR THE WATERLINE EXTENSION PROJECT 

BE IT ORDAINED by Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, North Carolina, that, 
pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the 
following capital project ordinance is hereby adopted: 

Section 1. The project authorized is to be known as the “Waterline Extension Project” 
and extends the Town’s water system by completing a new 12-inch main waterline on 
Clarks Chapel Road and Ollie Weaver Road for the purpose of improving the Town’s water 
distribution system reliability and operations. 

Section 2.  The Town Manager, Finance Officer/Director, Public Works Director and 
other officers and employees are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project within 
the terms and provisions of Chapter 159 of the North Carolina General Statutes, the USDA  
loan agreements, and the budget contained herein. 

Section 3. The following revenues and resources are anticipated to be available to 
complete the project activities: 

Appropriation from Water Fund $170,600 
Interim Financing/USDA Loan $2,800,000 

Total Project Revenues $2,970,600 

Section 4. The following expenditures are hereby appropriated for the project 
activities: 

Construction $2,329,200 
Engineering Fees $405,000 
Legal Services (Bond Counsel) $10,000 
Legal Services (Local Attorney) $5,000 
Administrative Costs $5,000 
Contingencies $126,400 
Interest – Interim Financing $90,000 

Total Project Expenditures $2,970,600 

Section 5. The Town of Weaverville Finance Office is hereby directed to maintain 
within the Capital Project Fund established with this ordinance, sufficient detailed 
accounting records to provide accounting information as required by Chapter 159 of the 
North Carolina General Statutes and to comply with USDA funding requirements. 

44



Page 2 

Section 6.  The Budget Officer and/or Finance Officer is directed to include a detailed 
analysis of past and future costs and revenues of this capital project in every budget 
submission made to Town Council.  

Section 7. The Finance Officer is directed to report at least quarterly on the financial 
status of each project element in Section 4 and the revenues received or expected on the 
project. 

Section 8. The Town Manager is hereby authorized and empowered to execute any and 
all documents necessary to commence, carry out, and complete the capital project set forth 
herein without any further direction, authorization, or consent, including without 
limitation any and all contract documents, change orders, or any other such documents as 
may be necessary to give direction to engineers, contractors, and others in completing this 
capital project, subject to compliance with law.  

Section 9. The Town Manager is authorized to transfer appropriations within the 
various line items of this capital project ordinance as she, in her discretion, deems 
necessary and if allowable by law.  

Section 10. The Town Manager shall from time to time report to Town Council as they 
shall direct as to the status of completion of the capital project and/or the status of the 
budget for the capital project. 

Section 11. Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be furnished to the Town 
Clerk, the Budget Officer, and the Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this project. 

 Section 12. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption but shall not 
be codified. 

ADOPTED THIS the 25th day of February, 2019, by a vote of 5 in favor and 0 against. 

__________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney 

Z:\Administration\Finance\Capital Project Ordinance - Waterline Extension Project - February 2019 - approved.docx 

45



Page 1 
 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 
CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE  

FOR THE WATERLINE EXTENSION PROJECT 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, North Carolina, that, 
pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the 
following amended and restated capital project ordinance is hereby adopted: 

Section 1. The project authorized is to be known as the “Waterline Extension Project” 
and extends the Town’s water system by completing a new 12-inch main waterline on 
Clarks Chapel Road and Ollie Weaver Road for the purpose of improving the Town’s water 
distribution system reliability and operations. 

Section 2.  The Town Manager, Finance Officer/Director, Public Works Director and 
other officers and employees are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project within 
the terms and provisions of Chapter 159 of the North Carolina General Statutes, the USDA  
loan agreements, and the budget contained herein. 

Section 3. The following revenues and resources are anticipated to be available to 
complete the project activities: 

Appropriation from Water Fund  $170,600 
Interim Financing/USDA Loan  $2,800,000 
   
Total Project Revenues  $2,970,600 

Section 4. The following expenditures are hereby appropriated for the project 
activities: 

Construction  $1,954,143 
Engineering Fees  $405,000 
Legal Services - Bond Counsel  $10,000 
Legal Services - Local  $5,000 
Administrative Costs  $5,000 
Contingency – Construction (5%)  $97,757 
Contingency – Other  $403,700 
Interest – Interim Financing  $90,000 
   
Total Project Expenditures  $2,970,600 

 

Section 5. The Town of Weaverville Finance Office is hereby directed to maintain 
within the Capital Project Fund established with this ordinance, sufficient detailed 
accounting records to provide accounting information as required by Chapter 159 of the 
North Carolina General Statutes and to comply with USDA funding requirements. 

46



Page 2 
 

Section 6.  The Budget Officer and/or Finance Officer is directed to include a detailed 
analysis of past and future costs and revenues of this capital project in every budget 
submission made to Town Council.  

Section 7. The Finance Officer is directed to report at least quarterly on the financial 
status of each project element in Section 4 and the revenues received or expected on the 
project. 

Section 8. The Town Manager is hereby authorized and empowered to execute any and 
all documents necessary to commence, carry out, and complete the capital project set forth 
herein without any further direction, authorization, or consent, including without 
limitation any and all contract documents, change orders, or any other such documents as 
may be necessary to give direction to engineers, contractors, and others in completing this 
capital project, subject to compliance with law.  

Section 9. The Town Manager is authorized to transfer appropriations within the 
various line items of this capital project ordinance except for the contingency line item 
entitled “Contingency – Other”, as she, in her discretion, deems necessary and if allowable 
by law. Funds budgeted within the continency line item entitled “Contingency – Other” 
cannot be expended without Town Council approval. 

Section 10. The Town Manager shall from time to time report to Town Council as they 
shall direct as to the status of completion of the capital project and/or the status of the 
budget for the capital project. 

Section 11. Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be furnished to the Town 
Clerk, the Budget Officer, and the Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this project. 

Section 12. This ordinance amends and restates that capital project ordinance that was 
adopted by Town Council on February 25, 2019. 

 Section 13. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption but shall not 
be codified. 

ADOPTED THIS the 27th day of January, 2020, by a vote of ___ in favor and ___ against. 

 
__________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor  

ATTESTED BY:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
_________________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk  JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney  

 

47



 

EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 1 of 7 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between Town of Weaverville (“Owner”) and 

Hyatt Pipeline, LLC (“Contractor”). 

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 – WORK 

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work 
is generally described as follows: 

The project intends to install public water distribution lines along Clarks Chapel Road and Ollie 
Weaver Road in Weaverville, North Carolina.  The project includes approximately 17,600 feet of 
new 12-inch water lines, hydrants, valves, and appurtenances. 

ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 

2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is known as the Water 
System Improvement project. 

ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER 

3.01 The Project has been designed by WithersRavenel. 

3.02 The Owner has retained WithersRavenel (“Engineer”) to act as Owner’s representative, assume 
all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the 
Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the Work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 

4.01 Time of the Essence 

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness 
for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. 

4.02 Contract Times: Days 

A. The Work will be substantially completed within 335 days after the date when the Contract 
Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions, and 
completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General 
Conditions within 365 days after the date when the Contract Times commence to run. 

4.03 Liquidated Damages 

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 above 
and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed and 
Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any 
extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. The parties also recognize the 

48



 

EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 2 of 7 

delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the 
actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of 
requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay 
(but not as a penalty): 

1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner $500  for each day that expires after 
the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in Paragraph 4.02.A above 
for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete. 

2. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall 
neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time (as 
duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final payment, 
Contractor shall pay Owner $500  for each day that expires after such time until the 
Work is completed and ready for final payment. 

3. Liquidated damages for failing to timely attain Substantial Completion and final 
completion are not additive and will not be imposed concurrently. 

4.04 Special Damages [Deleted] 

A. In addition to the amount provided for liquidated damages, Contractor shall reimburse 
Owner (1) for any fines or penalties imposed on Owner as a direct result of the Contractor’s 
failure to attain Substantial Completion according to the Contract Times, and (2) for the 
actual costs reasonably incurred by Owner for engineering, construction observation, 
inspection, and administrative services needed after the time specified in Paragraph 4.02 for 
Substantial Completion (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract), until the Work is 
substantially complete. 

B. After Contractor achieves Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail 
to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Times, Contractor shall reimburse 
Owner for the actual costs reasonably incurred by Owner for engineering, construction 
observation, inspection, and administrative services needed after the time specified in 
Paragraph 4.02 for Work to be completed and ready for final payment (as duly adjusted 
pursuant to the Contract), until the Work is completed and ready for final payment. 

ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract: 

A. For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the extended prices (established for 
each separately identified item of Unit Price Work by multiplying the unit price times the 
actual quantity of that item) as shown on the Bid form.  The extended prices for Unit Price 
Work set forth as of the Effective Date of the Contract are based on estimated quantities.  As 
provided in Paragraph 13.03 of the General Conditions, estimated quantities are not 
guaranteed, and determinations of actual quantities and classifications are to be made by 
Engineer. 

ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the General 
Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the 
General Conditions. 

49



 

EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 3 of 7 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of 
Contractor’s Applications for Payment on or about the 25th day of each month during 
performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that such 
Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the 
requirements of the Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of Values 
established as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based 
on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of Values, as 
provided elsewhere in the Contract. 

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to 
the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments 
previously made and less such amounts as Engineer may determine or Owner may 
withhold, including but not limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with the 
Contract. 

a. 95 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage); If the Work has 
been 50 percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and 
progress of the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long 
as the character and progress of the Work remain satisfactory to Owner and 
Engineer, there will be no additional retainage and 

b. 95 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with 
the balance being retainage). 

B. Upon Substantial Completion of the entire construction to be provided under the Contract 
Documents, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to Contractor 
to 100 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off by Owner pursuant to 
Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions and less 200 percent of Engineer’s estimate of 
the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on the punch list of items to be 
completed or corrected prior to final payment.  

6.03 Final Payment 

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of 
the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as 
recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06. 

ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST 

7.01 All amounts not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of 8 percent per annum. 

ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 

8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following 
representations: 

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and 
reference items identified in the Contract Documents. 

B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site 
and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site 
conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

50



 

EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 4 of 7 

C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, 
progress, and performance of the Work. 

D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing 
surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary 
Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings, and (2) 
reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent 
to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect 
to Technical Data in such reports and drawings. 

E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information 
commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and 
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related 
reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of such 
information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the 
Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be 
employed by Contractor; and (3) Contractor’s safety precautions and programs. 

F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, 
Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, 
or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the 
Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract. 

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at 
the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 
discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written 
resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all 
terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 

J. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by 
Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon performing 
and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

9.01 Contents 

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following: 

1. This Agreement 

2. Performance bond 

3. Payment bond 

4. General Conditions 

5. Supplementary Conditions 

6. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual 

7. Drawings as listed in Section 00850 – Drawing Index 

8. Addenda (numbers 1 to 3, inclusive) 

51



 

EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 5 of 7 

9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows): 

a. Contractor’s Bid 

10. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the 
Contract and are not attached hereto: 

a. Notice to Proceed. 

b. Work Change Directives. 

c. Change Orders. 

d. Field Orders. 

B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above). 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 
the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS 

10.01 Terms 

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and 
the Supplementary Conditions. 

10.02 Assignment of Contract 

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of 
any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto without 
the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, 
money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned without such 
consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and 
unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no 
assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the 
Contract Documents. 

10.03 Successors and Assigns 

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to 
the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

10.04 Severability 

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any 
Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be 
valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract Documents shall 
be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable 
provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 

10.05 Contractor’s Certifications 

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive 
practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 
10.05: 

52



 

EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 6 of 7 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value 
likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the Contract 
execution; 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of 
Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) 
to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices 
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect 
the execution of the Contract. 

10.06 Other Provisions 

A. Owner stipulates that if the General Conditions that are made a part of this Contract are 
based on EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions for the Construction Contract, 
published by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee®, and if Owner is the party 
that has furnished said General Conditions, then Owner has plainly shown all modifications 
to the standard wording of such published document to the Contractor, through a process 
such as highlighting or “track changes” (redline/strikeout), or in the Supplementary 
Conditions. 

53



 

EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 7 of 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.  

This Agreement will be effective on (Effective Date of Agreement) (which is the Effective Date of the 
Contract). 

 

OWNER:  CONTRACTOR: 

Town of Weaverville  Hyatt Pipeline, LLC 

By:   By:  

Title:   Title:  

  

(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or 
a joint venture, attach evidence of authority to 
sign.)   

Attest:   Attest:  

Title:   Title:  

Address for giving notices:  Address for giving notices: 
15 Quarry Road 

 
PO Box 136 

Weaverville, NC 28787 
 

Canton, NC 28716 

 
 

 

  License No.: 75332 

   
(where applicable) 

(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence of 
authority to sign. If Owner is a public body, attach 
evidence of authority to sign and resolution or 
other documents authorizing execution of this 
Agreement.) 

 NOTE TO USER:  Use in those states or other 
jurisdictions where applicable or required. 

 

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



From: Hintz, Randy
To: Murawski, Emily
Subject: FW: Town of Weaverville Water System Improvements
Date: Thursday, January 16, 2020 9:58:50 AM

 
 
Thanks, Randy
 
From: Michael Driscoll Sr <mdriscoll.hyattpipeline@gmail.com> 
Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2020 9:47 AM
To: Hintz, Randy <rhintz@withersravenel.com>
Cc: Dale Pennell <dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org>; Jennifer Jackson <jjackson@weavervillenc.org>;
Hysong, Pam - RD, Asheville, NC <pam.hysong@usda.gov>; Robbie Hyatt
<robhyatt1966@gmail.com>
Subject: Re: Town of Weaverville Water System Improvements
 
That is most certainly correct, Randy.
 
Our intention was for the total to be $20,088, and the unit price to be $372 per LF (x a length of 54
LF).
 
We apologize for any confusion and extra effort this caused in the review of our bid.
 
We are looking forward to getting to work on this project!
 
Professionally,

Mike Driscoll
Hyatt Pipeline, LLC
864-915-3508 mobile
MDriscoll.HyattPipeline@Gmail.com
 
On Thu, Jan 16, 2020, 09:34 Hintz, Randy <rhintz@withersravenel.com> wrote:

Mike,
 
As we discussed on the phone, your bid on the subject project contained an error on the pricing
for alternate bid item 1.  I have attached a copy of that page of your bid for your reference.  That
alternate bid item references a quantity of 54 LF.  Your unit price for that item is $20,088.  The
extended price is also $20,088.  Based on our conversation, I understand that your intention was
for the extended price to remain $20,088 and that the unit price should have been $20,088/54 =
$372.00/LF.
 
I need to you to confirm that this your intent so that we may accurately reflect your bid pricing for
this alternate bid item.

87

mailto:rhintz@withersravenel.com
mailto:emurawski@withersravenel.com
mailto:MDriscoll.HyattPipeline@Gmail.com
mailto:rhintz@withersravenel.com


 
Thanks,
 
Randy Hintz, P.E.
Senior Project Manager, Utilities
WithersRavenel 

84 Coxe Avenue, Suite 260   |   Asheville, NC 28801
Office: 828.255.0313   |   Mobile: 828.707.8388 
rhintz@withersravenel.com

CONFIDENTIALITY AND NONDISCLOSURE
 

88

http://www.withersravenel.com/
mailto:rhintz@withersravenel.com
https://www.linkedin.com/company/1040027?trk=tyah&trkInfo=clickedVertical%3Acompany%2CclickedEntityId%3A1040027%2Cidx%3A21-3%2CtarId%3A1439227492366%2Ctas%3Awithersravenel
https://www.facebook.com/withersravenel?ref=bookmarks
https://twitter.com/WithersRavenel
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC1Y4TLZTX7cTZxW_zKAXz_Q
http://withersravenel.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/09/Confidentiality.png


1/17/2020

1/1

NORTH CAROLINA LICENSING BOARD FOR
GENERAL CONTRACTORS

Name: Hyatt Pipeline, LLC
Number: 75332
Status: Valid
Last Renewal Date: 2020-01-01
Address: PO Box 136
City: Canton
State: NC
Zip: 28716-0136
County: HAYWOOD
Telephone: (828) 564-6654
limitation: Unlimited
Classifications : PU(Water Lines & Sewer Lines)

Qualifiers : Robert James Hyatt
Cory William Smith

89



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 27, 2020 

SUBJECT: Policies Regarding Standards and Acceptance of Private Streets 

PRESENTER:  Town Manager/Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: 2019 Powell Bill Map 
Updated Streets List 
Working Draft of Streets Policy 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

At the direction of Town Council based on its discussions on January 14, 2020, staff is 
providing the updated streets list that now includes data concerning the type and length of 
the private streets within the Town. This data allows the following estimates: 

Residential Private Streets – 38,085 feet or +/- 7.213 miles 
Commercial Private Streets – 8,585 feet or +/- 1.626 miles 
Industrial Private Streets – 4,455 feet or +/- 0.844 miles 

The 2019 Powell Bill Map shows in graphic form where the roads and streets are within 
the Town and whether they are private, DOT maintained or Town maintained. This map 
contains a lot of information that may be hard to read in a small format. A large map is 
available for review at Town Hall and will also be available at the Town Council meeting. 

Based on the consensus reached by Town Council on January 14th, staff has worked on 
developing a policy for street acceptance similar to the procedures used for water 
allocations. This working draft is in the form of an amendment to Town Code to add an 
article to Chapter 24 entitled “Street Standards and Acceptance of Private Streets and 
Related Infrastructure into Public Street System.” Staff has included the language the Town 
Council requested concerning “Existing Private Streets” but requests further discussion on 
that issue for clarity.  

Consideration of an ordinance to adopt a street policy such as the one attached, and other 
related code amendments, will be necessary should Town Council wish to enact these 
policies. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Manager recommends that Town Council discuss and come to consensus on which 
alternative regarding “Existing Private Streets” best meets its policy objectives and direct 
staff to bring back a formal ordinance adopting these streets policies and other related and 
necessary amendments into the Town’s Code of Ordinances. 

90



91



To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

St
re

et
 L

is
t (

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
20

) 
  

  
Ro

ad
 N

am
e 

Cr
os

sr
oa

d(
s)

 
O

w
ne

r 
Li

ne
ar

 F
ee

t a
nd

 U
se

-P
R 

 
A 

  
  

  
AB

 E
m

bl
em

 D
r. 

M
er

rim
on

 
PR

 
57

5 
ft

. /
 I 

Ai
ke

n 
Rd

 
M

er
rim

on
 

DO
T 

  
Al

 D
or

f D
r. 

Pe
nl

ey
 P

ar
k 

PU
/P

R 
  

Al
ab

am
a 

Av
e.

 
Ch

ur
ch

, G
eo

rg
ia

, F
lo

rid
a,

 C
en

tr
al

, M
er

rim
on

 
PU

 
  

Al
ar

on
 D

r. 
Ro

be
rt

s 
PU

 
  

Al
ex

an
de

r R
d.

 
Ch

ur
ch

, M
oo

re
 

PU
 

  
Am

bl
er

s K
no

ll 
Rd

. 
Re

em
s C

re
ek

 
N

YC
: P

U 
  

At
he

na
 A

ve
. 

M
er

rim
on

 
PR

 
38

0 
ft

. /
 R

 
B 

  
  

  
Ba

ird
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Rd
. 

Hi
gh

la
nd

er
 

DO
T 

  
Ba

lc
ra

nk
 W

ay
 

Re
em

s C
re

ek
 

PR
 

1,
78

0 
ft

. /
 I 

Ba
lla

rd
 R

d.
 

Sa
le

m
 

PU
 

  
Ba

nk
st

ow
n 

Rd
. 

M
er

rim
on

, R
ee

m
s C

re
ek

 
DO

T 
  

Ba
rn

et
te

 S
ho

al
s D

r. 
At

he
na

 
PR

 
45

0 
ft

. /
 R

 
Be

ne
di

ct
 L

n.
 

N
or

th
cr

es
t 

N
YC

: P
R 

91
5 

ft
. /

 R
 

Be
tt

 S
tr

ou
d 

Rd
. 

N
or

th
rid

ge
 C

om
m

on
s 

PR
 

1,
00

0 
ft

. /
 C

 
Bi

rk
da

le
 D

r. 
Hi

llc
re

st
 

PU
 

  
Bl

ue
be

rr
y 

Hi
ll 

Rd
. 

M
er

rim
on

 
DO

T 
  

Bl
ue

be
rr

y 
Rd

g.
 

M
er

rim
on

 
DO

T 
  

Br
itt

ai
n 

St
. 

O
ak

la
nd

 
PU

 
  

Br
ow

n 
St

.  
S 

M
ai

n,
 M

er
rim

on
, S

 C
ol

le
ge

 
PU

 
  

Br
ow

n 
St

. E
xt

. 
Br

ow
n 

PU
 

  
Br

us
hw

oo
d 

Rd
. 

W
ild

er
ne

ss
 

DO
T 

  
C 

  
  

  
Ca

m
sy

n 
Dr

. 
Pi

nk
 F

ox
 C

ov
e 

PR
 

2,
50

0 
ft

. /
 R

 
Ca

pe
to

w
n 

Ct
.  

Ga
rr

iso
n 

Br
an

ch
 

N
YC

: P
R 

1,
95

0 
ft

. /
 R

 
Ca

rd
en

 D
r. 

Ca
m

sy
n 

PR
 

1,
15

0 
ft

. /
 R

 

92



Ce
nt

ra
l A

ve
. 

M
er

rim
on

, A
la

ba
m

a,
 C

ol
le

ge
 C

re
sc

en
t, 

Co
lle

ge
 

PU
 

Ch
er

ry
 S

t. 
N

.M
ai

n
PU

 
Ch

es
tn

ut
 S

t. 
O

ak
la

nd
, C

he
rr

y,
 C

ol
em

an
 

PU
 

Ch
ip

m
un

k 
Co

ve
 R

d.
 

Ba
ird

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
DO

T 
Ch

lo
pe

k 
W

ay
 

Re
em

s C
re

ek
 

PR
 

Ch
ur

ch
 S

t. 
N

.M
ai

n,
 A

la
ba

m
a,

 R
ea

ga
n,

 C
ol

le
ge

, A
le

xa
nd

er
, R

id
ge

w
oo

d,
 H

ig
hl

an
d

PU
 

Ch
ur

ch
 S

t. 
Ex

t. 
Ch

ur
ch

 
PU

 
Cl

ar
k 

St
. 

Su
ns

et
 

PU
 

Cl
in

to
n 

St
. 

N
.M

ai
n,

 W
ea

ve
r

PU
 

Co
le

m
an

 H
en

sle
y 

Dr
. 

N
.M

ai
n

PR
 

47
5 

ft
. /

 R
 

Co
le

m
an

 S
t. 

N
.M

ai
n

PU
 

Co
lle

ge
 C

re
se

nt
 

Ce
nt

ra
l, 

N
. C

ol
le

ge
 

PU
 

Co
lle

ge
 S

t. 
(N

or
th

) 
Ch

ur
ch

, O
ak

w
oo

d,
 C

ol
le

ge
 C

re
sc

en
t, 

Ce
nt

ra
l 

PU
 

Co
lle

ge
 S

t. 
(S

ou
th

) 
Ce

nt
ra

l, 
La

ke
sh

or
e,

 B
ro

w
n 

PU
 

Co
m

pa
ni

on
 W

ay
 

Pe
rr

io
n 

Av
e.

 
PU

 
Co

m
pa

ss
 P

ar
k 

Dr
. 

Pe
nl

ey
 P

ar
k,

 G
ov

. T
ho

m
so

n 
PR

 
1,

37
5 

ft
. /

 R
 

Co
nr

ad
 In

du
st

ria
l D

r. 
M

er
rim

on
 

PR
 

55
0 

ft
. /

 I 
Co

ur
se

vi
ew

 D
r. 

Pi
nk

 F
ox

 C
ov

e 
PU

 
Cr

an
do

n 
Ct

. 
Kn

ol
l R

id
ge

 
DO

T 
Cr

ee
ks

id
e 

Dr
. 

Kn
ol

l R
id

ge
 

DO
T 

Cr
es

ce
nt

 C
t. 

Va
lle

y 
PU

 
Cr

itt
er

 T
r. 

N
.M

ai
n

PR
 

45
0 

ft
. /

 R
 

D De
cl

an
 D

r. 
Ya

rr
ow

 M
ea

do
w

 
PR

 
15

0 
ft

. /
 R

 
De

nd
y 

Dr
. 

Ge
or

gi
a,

 F
lo

rid
a 

PU
 

De
vo

ns
hi

re
 D

r. 
Hi

llc
re

st
 

PU
 

Du
la

 S
pr

in
gs

 R
d.

 
N

.M
ai

n,
 N

. B
un

co
m

be
 S

ch
oo

l
DO

T 
Du

nc
an

no
n 

St
. 

Lo
ft

in
 

PR
 

16
0 

ft
. /

 R
 

E Ea
st

. S
t. 

S.
M

ai
n,

 R
ey

no
ld

s,
 H

ill
sid

e
PU

 

93



El
k 

Ln
. 

W
hi

te
ta

il 
PU

 
  

F 
  

  
  

Fa
irf

ie
ld

 A
pp

ro
ac

h 
Dr

.  
W

ea
ve

r 
PR

 
1,

02
5 

ft
. /

 C
 

Fi
rw

oo
d 

Ct
. 

W
es

tm
in

st
er

  
DO

T 
  

Fl
or

id
a 

Av
e.

 
De

nd
y,

 A
la

ba
m

a,
 M

er
ch

an
ts

, N
. M

ai
n 

PU
 

  
Fo

rt
re

ss
 R

dg
. 

Pe
rr

io
n,

 L
on

gs
tr

ee
t 

PU
 

  
G 

  
  

  
Ga

le
 K

el
ly

 C
t. 

Al
 D

or
f 

PU
 

  
Ga

rr
iso

n 
Br

an
ch

 R
d.

 
M

on
tic

el
lo

  
DO

T 
  

Ga
rr

iso
n 

Rd
. 

M
er

rim
on

 
DO

T 
  

Ge
or

gi
a 

Av
e.

 
De

nd
y,

 A
la

ba
m

a,
 N

. M
ai

n 
PU

 
  

Go
v.

 T
ho

m
so

n 
Te

r. 
Ha

m
bu

rg
 M

ou
nt

ai
n,

 P
en

le
y 

Pa
rk

, C
om

pa
ss

 P
ar

k 
PR

 
3,

60
0 

ft
. /

 R
 

Gr
eg

or
y 

Ct
. 

Be
ne

di
ct

, G
ill

 B
ra

nc
h 

N
YC

: P
R 

95
 ft

. /
 R

 
Gr

ov
e 

St
. 

M
er

rim
on

, N
or

th
, S

. M
ai

n 
PU

 
  

H 
  

  
  

Ha
m

bu
rg

 D
r. 

N
. M

ai
n,

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
PU

 
  

Ha
m

bu
rg

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Rd

. 
N

. M
ai

n,
 R

ee
ve

s,
 R

ob
er

ts
, R

ee
m

s C
re

ek
 

DO
T 

  
Ha

rb
ec

k 
Dr

.  
M

oo
re

 
PU

 
  

Ha
w

tr
ee

 C
t. 

Bi
rk

da
le

 
PU

 
  

He
at

he
r C

t. 
Kn

ol
l R

id
ge

 
DO

T 
  

Hi
ck

or
y 

Ln
. 

Ai
ke

n 
PR

 
40

0 
ft

. /
 R

 
Hi

gh
 B

lu
ff 

Dr
. 

Hi
llc

re
st

, H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 

PU
 

  
Hi

gh
 M

ea
do

w
 C

ov
e 

Dr
. 

Hi
gh

 M
ea

do
ew

 
PU

 
  

Hi
gh

la
nd

 P
oi

nt
e 

Ct
. 

La
ke

w
ay

 
PU

 
  

Hi
gh

la
nd

 P
oi

nt
e 

Dr
. 

La
ke

w
ay

 
PU

 
  

Hi
gh

la
nd

 S
t. 

Ch
ur

ch
, S

al
em

, K
yf

ie
ld

s,
 R

id
dl

e 
Ri

dg
e,

 L
ak

es
ho

re
 

PU
 

  
Hi

gh
la

nd
er

 D
r. 

M
er

rim
on

, B
ai

rd
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

DO
T 

  
Hi

llc
re

st
 D

r. 
U

ni
on

 C
ha

pe
l, 

Pi
nk

 F
ox

 C
ov

e 
PU

 
  

Hi
lls

id
e 

St
. 

S.
 M

ai
n,

 E
as

t, 
Re

em
s C

re
ek

 
DO

T 
  

Ho
lst

on
 V

ie
w

 D
r. 

M
on

tic
el

lo
 

N
YC

: P
R 

2,
52

5 
ft

. /
 R

 

94



Hu
nt

in
g 

Gr
ee

n 
Dr

. 
Kn

ol
l R

id
ge

 
DO

T 
Hy

er
 H

l. 
La

ke
sh

or
e 

PR
 

45
0 

ft
. /

 R
 

K Ki
tt

y 
Ln

. 
Al

ex
an

de
r 

PR
 

27
5 

ft
. /

 R
 

Kn
ol

l R
di

ge
 D

r. 
M

er
rim

on
 

DO
T 

Ky
fie

ld
s D

r 
Hi

gh
la

nd
, S

al
em

 
PR

 
5,

35
0 

ft
. /

 R
 

L La
ke

 L
ou

ise
 D

r. 
La

ke
sh

or
e,

 M
er

rim
on

 
PU

 
La

ke
sh

or
e 

Dr
. 

S.
Co

lle
ge

, M
et

ca
lf,

 L
ak

e 
Lo

ui
se

, H
ig

hl
an

d,
 Q

ua
rr

y,
 M

er
rim

on
PU

 
La

ke
sid

e 
M

ea
do

w
s D

r. 
M

er
rim

on
 

PR
 

11
5 

ft
. /

 R
 

La
ke

vi
ew

 D
r. 

Ky
fli

el
ds

 
PR

 
se

e 
Ky

fie
ld

s 
La

ke
w

ay
 C

ir.
 

Hi
llc

re
st

 
PU

 
Li

lli
e 

Fa
rm

 L
n.

 
Cr

itt
er

 
PR

 
68

0 
ft

. /
 R

 
Lo

ft
in

 S
t. 

Ai
ke

n,
 A

th
en

a 
PR

 
1,

80
0 

ft
. /

 R
 

Lo
ng

st
re

et
 C

t. 
Pe

rr
io

n 
PU

 
M

 
M

an
or

 W
ay

 
Hi

llc
re

st
 

PU
 

M
ar

lw
oo

d 
Ct

. 
Kn

ol
l R

id
ge

 
DO

T 
M

ea
do

w
br

oo
k 

Ln
. 

Va
lle

y 
PU

 
M

ea
rc

ha
nt

s A
ly

. 
Fl

or
id

a,
 C

en
tr

al
 

PU
 

M
er

rim
on

 A
ve

. 
W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
Hw

y.
, M

ai
n 

St
. 

DO
T 

M
et

ca
lf 

Dr
. 

La
ke

sh
or

e 
PU

 
M

on
tic

el
lo

 C
om

m
on

s D
r. 

N
.M

ai
n

PR
 

1,
36

0 
ft

. /
 C

 
M

on
tic

el
lo

 R
d.

 
N

.M
ai

n,
 U

S 
25

/7
0

DO
T 

M
on

tic
el

lo
 V

ill
ag

e 
Dr

. 
N

.M
ai

n
PR

 
1,

 3
75

 ft
. /

 C
 

M
oo

re
 S

t. 
Al

ex
an

de
r, 

N
. C

ol
le

ge
, R

ea
ga

n,
 N

. M
ai

n 
PU

 
M

ou
nt

ai
n 

M
ea

do
w

 C
ir.

 
Re

em
s C

re
ek

, H
am

bu
rg

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
PR

 
1,

77
5 

ft
. /

 R
 

N
 

N
.B

un
co

m
be

 S
ch

oo
l R

d.
N

.M
ai

n,
 D

ul
a 

Sp
rin

gs
DO

T 
N

.O
ld

 B
un

co
m

be
 S

ch
oo

l
N

.B
un

co
m

be
 S

ch
oo

l
DO

T 

95



Rd
. 

N
or

th
 M

ai
n 

St
. 

M
er

rim
on

, W
ea

ve
r, 

M
on

tic
el

lo
 

DO
T 

  
N

or
th

 S
t. 

S.
 M

ai
n,

 G
ro

ve
 

PU
 

  
N

or
th

cr
es

t D
r. 

M
on

tic
el

lo
, N

or
th

rid
ge

 C
om

m
on

s 
PR

 
1,

12
5 

ft
. /

 C
 

N
or

th
rid

ge
 C

om
m

on
s 

Pk
w

y.
 

U
S 

25
/7

0,
 N

or
th

cr
es

t 
PR

 
2,

70
0 

ft
. /

 C
 

O
 

  
  

  
O

ak
 S

t. 
Br

ow
n 

PU
 

  
O

ak
la

nd
 S

t. 
N

. M
ai

n 
PU

 
  

O
ak

w
oo

d 
Dr

. 
N

. C
ol

le
ge

, R
id

ge
w

oo
d 

PU
 

  
O

ld
 D

ry
 R

id
ge

 C
ir.

 
Ce

nt
ra

l 
PU

 
  

O
rc

ha
rd

 P
l. 

Sa
le

m
 

PU
 

  
P 

  
  

  
Pa

rk
 A

ve
. 

M
er

rim
on

, B
ro

w
n 

PU
 

  
Pa

rk
 D

r. 
Ri

dg
ew

oo
d 

PU
 

  
Pa

rs
on

ag
e 

Dr
. 

Bl
ue

be
rr

y 
Hi

ll 
DO

T 
  

Pa
rt

rid
ge

 B
er

ry
 L

n.
 

Re
em

s C
re

ek
, D

og
w

oo
d 

PU
 

  
Pe

nl
ey

 P
ar

k 
Dr

.  
U

ni
on

 C
ha

pe
l, 

Go
v.

 T
ho

m
so

n 
PU

 
  

Pe
rr

io
n 

Av
e.

 
Ha

m
bu

rg
 

PU
 

  
Pe

rr
io

n 
Ct

. 
Pe

rr
io

n 
Av

e.
 

PU
 

  
Ph

ip
ps

 S
t. 

S.
 M

ai
n,

 R
ee

m
s C

re
ek

 
PU

 
  

Pi
ne

 S
t. 

N
. M

ai
n,

 R
ee

ve
s,

 R
ob

er
ts

 
PU

 
  

Pr
es

to
n 

Ct
. 

Hi
llc

re
st

 
PU

 
  

Q
 

  
  

  
Q

ua
rr

y 
Rd

. 
La

ke
sh

or
e 

PU
 

  
R 

  
  

  
Ra

bb
it 

Ri
dg

e 
Dr

. 
U

ni
on

 C
ha

pe
l 

PR
 

83
5 

ft
. /

 R
 

Re
ag

an
 L

n.
 

N
. M

ai
n 

PU
 

  
Re

ag
an

 S
t. 

 
Ch

ur
ch

, M
oo

re
 

PU
 

  
Re

d 
Co

le
 D

r. 
N

. B
un

co
m

be
 S

ch
oo

l  
PR

 
50

0 
ft

. /
 R

 

96



Re
em

s C
re

ek
 R

d.
 

M
er

rim
on

, S
. M

ai
n,

 D
og

w
oo

d,
 H

am
bu

rg
 M

ou
nt

ai
n,

 U
ni

on
 C

ha
pe

l 
DO

T 
  

Re
ev

es
 S

t. 
 

Ha
m

bu
rg

 M
ou

nt
ai

n,
 P

in
e 

PU
 

  
Re

yn
ol

ds
 L

n.
 

Ea
st

 S
t. 

PU
/P

R 
58

0 
ft

. /
 R

 
Rh

od
a 

Ct
.  

M
er

rim
on

 
PR

 
  

Ri
dd

le
 R

id
ge

 D
r. 

Hi
gh

la
nd

 
PR

 
97

5 
ft

. /
 R

 
Ri

dg
em

on
t D

r. 
Hi

llc
re

st
 

PU
 

  
Ri

dg
ew

oo
d 

Av
e.

 
Ch

ur
ch

, P
ar

k,
 O

ak
w

oo
d 

PU
 

  
Ro

be
rt

s S
t. 

Ha
m

bu
rg

 M
ou

nt
ai

n,
 P

in
e 

PU
 

  
Ro

bi
n 

Ro
os

t R
d.

 
Sa

nd
st

on
e,

 S
en

ec
a 

PR
 

77
5 

ft
. /

 R
 

S 
  

  
  

Sa
in

t B
ro

w
ns

 P
l. 

Hy
er

 
PR

 
27

5 
ft

. /
 R

 
Sa

le
m

 A
cr

es
 R

d.
 

Sa
le

m
 

PU
 

  
Sa

le
m

 R
d.

 
Hi

gh
la

nd
, B

al
la

rd
, K

yf
ie

ld
s, 

O
rc

ha
rd

, S
al

em
 A

cr
es

 
PU

 
  

Sa
nd

st
on

e 
Dr

. 
Lo

ft
in

 
PR

 
1,

00
0 

ft
. /

 R
 

Se
ne

ca
 S

t. 
Ai

ke
n,

 R
ob

in
 R

oo
st

 
PR

 
37

5 
ft

. /
 R

 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Dr
.  

Al
ex

an
de

r 
PU

 
  

So
ut

h 
M

ai
n 

St
. 

M
er

rim
on

, B
ro

w
n,

 H
ill

sid
e,

 P
hi

pp
s,

 Y
os

t, 
Re

em
s C

re
ek

 
DO

T 
  

So
ut

h 
M

ai
n 

St
. E

xt
. 

Re
em

s C
re

ek
 

DO
T 

  
Sp

ru
ce

 S
t. 

Pi
ne

 
PU

 
  

St
on

ey
 H

ill
 C

t. 
He

at
he

r 
DO

T 
  

Su
ns

et
 D

r. 
N

. M
ai

n 
PU

 
  

T 
  

  
  

Tw
in

 C
ou

rt
s D

r. 
Co

ur
se

vi
ew

 
PU

 
  

U
 

  
  

  
U

ni
on

 C
ha

pe
l R

d.
 

Re
em

s C
re

ek
 

DO
T 

  
V 

  
  

  
Va

lle
y 

Dr
. 

Hi
llc

re
st

 
PU

 
  

Va
lle

y 
Tr

ac
e 

Ln
. 

Ha
m

bu
rg

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Rd

. 
PR

 
19

0 
ft

. /
 R

 
Vi

lla
ge

 C
t. 

Vi
lla

ge
 P

ar
k 

PU
 

  
Vi

lla
ge

 P
ar

k 
Dr

. 
M

er
rim

on
   

PU
 

  

97



W
 

W
.C

ov
e 

Rd
.

W
es

t  
PU

 
W

ad
de

ll 
St

. 
Cl

in
to

n 
PU

 
W

at
er

s E
dg

e 
Dr

. 
M

er
rim

on
, B

an
ks

 T
ow

n 
PR

 
71

5 
ft

. /
 R

 
W

at
er

 P
oi

nt
 W

ay
 

Q
ua

rr
y 

PR
 

32
5 

ft
. /

 R
 

W
ea

ve
r B

lv
d.

 
U

S 
25

/7
0,

 N
. M

ai
n 

DO
T 

W
ea

ve
r V

ie
w

 C
ir.

 
M

on
tic

el
lo

 
PR

 
2,

60
0 

ft
. /

 R
 

W
ea

ve
r V

ill
ag

e 
W

ay
 

W
ea

ve
r 

PR
 

1,
34

5 
ft

. /
 R

 
W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
Hw

y.
 

M
er

rim
on

 
DO

T 
W

eb
st

er
 S

t. 
Su

ns
et

 
PU

 
W

es
t S

t. 
M

er
rim

on
, S

. M
ai

n 
 

PU
 

W
es

tm
in

st
er

 D
r. 

Kn
ol

l R
id

ge
 

DO
T 

W
hi

te
ta

il 
Dr

. 
Yo

st
 

PU
 

W
ild

er
ne

ss
 R

d.
 

Ba
ird

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
DO

T 
W

ild
w

oo
d 

Av
e.

 
N

.M
ai

n
PU

 
W

ild
w

oo
d 

Ln
. 

W
ild

w
oo

d 
Av

e.
 

PU
 

W
ild

w
oo

d 
Pa

rk
 D

r. 
N

.M
ai

n
PU

 
W

ild
w

oo
d 

Pa
rk

 K
nl

. 
W

ild
w

oo
d 

Pa
rk

 D
r. 

PU
 

W
ill

ia
m

et
te

 C
ir.

 
M

et
ca

lf 
PU

 
W

ill
ia

m
s S

t. 
N

.M
ai

n
PU

 
Y Ya

rr
ow

 M
ea

do
w

 R
d.

 
Li

lli
e 

Fa
rm

 
PR

 
57

5 
ft

. /
 R

 
Yo

st
 S

t. 
M

er
rim

on
, S

. M
ai

n 
PU

 

Th
es

e 
fig

ur
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
lin

ea
r f

ee
t o

f p
riv

at
e 

ro
ad

s a
nd

 th
e 

us
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s w
hi

ch
 a

bu
t t

he
m

 o
nl

y 
in

cl
ud

e 
na

m
ed

 ro
ad

s a
nd

 d
o 

no
t 

in
cl

ud
e 

ot
he

r a
re

as
 o

f p
riv

at
e 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 su

ch
 a

s p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
ts

 o
r i

nt
er

na
l c

irc
ul

at
io

n 
of

 c
om

m
on

 a
re

as
. A

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
9.

68
2 

m
ile

s o
f p

riv
at

e 
ro

ad
s e

xi
st

 in
 th

e 
ju

ris
di

ct
io

n.
 

Pr
iv

at
e 

Ro
ad

 –
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 U

se
 

Pr
iv

at
e 

Ro
ad

 –
 In

du
st

ria
l U

se
 

Pr
iv

at
e 

Ro
ad

 –
 R

es
id

en
tia

l U
se

 
8,

58
5 

fe
et

 / 
1.

62
6 

m
ile

s 
4,

45
5 

fe
et

 / 
0.

84
4 

m
ile

s 
38

,0
85

 fe
et

 / 
7.

21
3 

m
ile

s 

98



WORKING DRAFT 
1/27/2020 
 

1 
 

CHAPTER 24 – STREETS AND SIDEWALKS 

ARTICLE V. – STREET STANDARDS AND ACCEPTANCE OF PRIVATE STREETS  
AND RELATED INFRASTRUCTURE INTO PUBLIC STREET SYSTEM 

 
Sec. 24-81. – Public Street System – Town Council Discretion 

The Town of Weaverville maintains a public street system which includes streets and 
sidewalks that are publicly maintained and open for use by the public. The public street 
system also includes curbing and storm drainage systems that are connected or related 
to the streets.  
In its sole discretion the Weaverville town council has the authority and right to 
determine the location and extent of its public street system and which streets and 
related infrastructure are to be publicly maintained by the town. Nothing contained in 
this article should be construed as a limitation on the absolute discretion of town council 
with regard to the town’s street system. 
Regarding the town’s public street system, town council may consider, but is not limited 
to, the following factors:  

general operational needs of the town, general fiscal needs and financial 
standing of the town, town strategic plans, comprehensive land use plans, 
economic development, traffic patterns, traffic or transportation plans, 
interconnectivity to other public streets, location of street, length and width of 
street and right-of-way area, topography and slope, number and types of uses 
along the street, affordable housing considerations, standards of construction of 
street and related infrastructure, anticipated cost of maintenance and repairs to 
the street, cost of maintenance of the public street system as a whole, any other 
factor found by town council to be reasonable. 

 

Sec. 24-82. – All Streets are Private Unless Accepted into a Public Street System  

All streets are private unless accepted into a public street system. The notation of a 
“public street” on a recorded plat serves only as an offer of dedication for that street for 
public use. A developer/owner cannot obligate the town to take over a street. The 
approval of a plat shall not be deemed to constitute or affect the acceptance of the town 
or by the public of the dedication of any street or related infrastructure shown on the 
plat. Streets remain private until the town (or other public road system such as North 
Carolina Department of Transportation) formally accepts the street into its public street 
system. 

 

 

99



WORKING DRAFT 
1/27/2020 
 

2 
 

Sec. 24-83. – Private Street Standards 

The minimum streets standards for all private residential streets constructed within the 
town are the standards set forth in the North Carolina Department of Transportation 
Subdivision Road Minimum Construction Standards, as the same shall from time to time 
be amended.  

Streets, including internal circulation streets within parking lots, serving multi-family 
residential, institutional, commercial and industrial uses and manufactured home parks, 
must be constructed in such a way as to allow reasonable access for the anticipated 
traffic associated with the specific use being served and for ease of emergency access.  

For all private streets constructed within the town, the requirements of the North 
Carolina Fire Prevention Code as adopted by the Town of Weaverville and as the same 
may from time to time be amended, applicable for the specific use of the property 
served, must be complied with.  

 

Sec. 24-84. – Public Street Standards  

In order for a new street to be eligible for acceptance into the town’s public street 
system, a street and its related infrastructure must be constructed in accordance with 
the town’s adopted public street standards, as the same may from time to time be 
amended. In addition, the requirements of the North Carolina Fire Prevention Code as 
adopted by the Town of Weaverville and as the same may from time to time be 
amended, applicable for the specific use of the property served, must be complied with.  

Site visits and observations by the public works department and town review of certain 
test results are required at the completion of certain critical phases of the street system 
construction including specifically the following:  

(a) On-site review of site clearing and grubbing prior to grading; 
(b) On-site review of grading and fill operations and review of compaction test 

results on all fill areas under the roadway; 
(c) On-site review of storm drainage system and review of compaction test 

results of the storm drainage trench; 
(d) Review of compaction test results for all utilities installed in the roadway;  
(e) On-site review of curb/curb and gutter, sidewalks, and drive entrances;  
(f) On-site review of proof-rolling of the sub-grade material;  
(g) On-site review of installation of the ABC stone base and review of compaction 

test results;  

100



WORKING DRAFT 
1/27/2020 
 

3 
 

(h) On-site review of proof-rolling of the stone base; and 
(i) On-site review of asphalt paving and review of compaction test results. 

The developer/owner must notify the public works department at each of the above 
phases in order to allow the Town’s public works department the opportunity to review 
the work. Failure on the part of the developer/owner to notify public works at each of 
these critical construction phases may disqualify a street from eligibility for acceptance 
into the town’s public street system or may cause work to have to be uncovered and 
redone at the expense of the developer/owner.  
 

Sec. 24 - 85. – Streets Serving Multi-Family Residential, Institutional, Commercial 
and/or Industrial Uses or Manufactured Home Parks 

All streets, including internal circulation streets within parking lots, serving multi-family 
residential, institutional, commercial or industrial uses or manufactured home parks, will 
remain private unless, in town council’s discretion, such streets further a significant 
public interest.  

 

Sec. 24-86. – Developer/Owner Declaration Concerning Residential Streets 

Prior to development approval, developers/owners constructing new residential streets 
must declare whether they will be requesting that the new streets be accepted into the 
town’s public street system or are to remain private. Requests for acceptance into the 
public street system must follow the procedures for a public street commitment as set 
out in this article and such commitment must be decided prior to development approval.  

Residential streets that are declared to be private will not be observed by town 
representatives and will not be eligible for inclusion into the public street system.   

 

Sec. 24-87. – Public Street Commitment  

If a developer/owner wishes to have a street accepted into the town’s public street 
system then the developer/owner must request a public street commitment letter in 
accordance with this section. 

(a) Application for public street commitment – A developer/owner that desires a 
public street commitment shall submit such request in writing on such forms and 
in such detail as prescribed by the town manager. 

101



WORKING DRAFT 
1/27/2020 
 

4 
 

(b) Processing fee – At the time of requesting a public street commitment letter, the 
applicant shall pay to the town a nonrefundable processing fee in the amount set 
forth in the town’s adopted fee schedule. 

(c) Staff review and recommendation – Upon receipt of an application, town staff 
shall evaluate the request and make recommendations to town council, including 
any recommended conditions to be included in the commitment letter. 

(d) Town council action – Town council shall consider and take action to either 
decline acceptance or to issue a declaration of intent to accept streets upon 
condition that streets be constructed to Town standards with required periodic 
Town inspections, and/or other conditions as deemed necessary by town council. 

(e) Issuance of street commitment letter – Upon town council approval the town 
manager will issue a street commitment letter outlining the conditions imposed 
and requirements for town verification of compliance with conditions and 
requirements. The street commitment letter is transferable by the applicant, but is 
only valid for the original project and for streets and related infrastructure that are 
the same as or substantially similar to what was originally proposed.  

(f) Expiration, termination, and revocation of public street commitment letter –  
(1) A public street commitment is valid for one (1) year from its issuance but, 

upon request, may be extended for an additional one (1) year period by 
the town manager upon a showing of good reason for the delay.  

(2) Once construction of a street has begun the developer/owner must use 
reasonably diligent efforts to complete the construction of the street in a 
reasonable time. If more than one (1) year elapses from the 
commencement of construction without any work being done on the street, 
then the street shall be deemed abandoned and the commitment letter 
shall terminate.  

(3) If a developer/owner fails to call for on-site observation of critical 
construction phases by town representatives or conduct the required 
testing, of if town standards have not been met then the public works 
director shall report such information to town council and the public street 
commitment letter is subject to revocation by town council. 

(4) The developer/owner will be given an opportunity to be heard by town 
council concerning termination or revocation of the public street 
commitment letter. 

 

Sec. 24-88. – Existing Private Streets  

[SEE PAGES 7-8 BELOW FOR ALTERNATIVES] 

 

102



WORKING DRAFT 
1/27/2020 
 

5 
 

Sec. 24-89. – Report and Recommendation of Public Works Director 

Prior to town council’s acceptance of any street and related infrastructure into the public 
street system, the public work’s director shall submit a report and recommendation for 
town council’s consideration. The report should address the developer/owner’s 
compliance with any conditions or requirements stated in the public street commitment 
letter. The report should also include a recommendation as to the amount of a 
reasonable repair guaranty.   

 

Sec. 24-90. – Warranty and Repair Guaranty.  

As a condition of acceptance into the public street system, all streets and related 
infrastructure shall be warranted by the person, corporation or company making the 
improvements for a period of two (2) years from the date of final approval which 
warranty shall be in writing and include an indemnification clause, agreeing to indemnify 
and hold the town harmless from any such claims during the two-year warranty period. 
As a condition of acceptance into the public street system, the developer/owner shall be 
required to submit a repair guaranty in a reasonable amount set by town council for 
three (3) years following the warranty period.   

Sec. 24-91. – Street Right-of-Way Plat.  

Once the street and related infrastructure, or any required repair work, are completed 
and approved by the public works department, developer/owner shall provide to the 
public works department a proposed recordable plat showing the as-built streets and 
related infrastructure and the right-of-way to be conveyed. 
The public works director, planning director, and town attorney are to review the 
proposed plat to determine its adequacy and provide recommendations as they deem 
appropriate to town council. 
 
Sec. 24-92. – Formal Acceptance of Street and Related Infrastructure.  

Once the street and all related infrastructure have been completed, the right-of-way plat 
has been prepared and approved by the public work’s director, planning director, and 
town attorney, and the public work’s director has prepared and submitted his/her report 
and recommendation, or at any other time requested by the developer/owner, the town 
manager will put the request for acceptance on the next available town council meeting 
so that town council can consider the request.  
Town council will be asked to consider acceptance of the street and related 
infrastructure into the Town’s public street system.  

103



WORKING DRAFT 
1/27/2020 
 

6 
 

Sec. 24-93. – Post Acceptance Recordation.  

If accepted and approved by town council, developer/owner must, at its expense, record 
the approved plat and convey the right-of-way by deed to the town in a form approved 
by the town attorney.  
 

Sec. 24-94. – Limitation of Town Representative Responsibility.  

Participation of town representatives in any on-site review or observation is for town 
purposes only and should not be relied upon by the developer/owner for engineering 
inspection and certification purposes.  

 

Sec. 24-95. – Appeal of Administrative Decisions 

Any administrative decision concerning the public street system is appealable to town 
council. Such an appeal must be submitted in writing to the town clerk within 30 days of 
the administrative decision and the writing must include the reasons for or basis of the 
appeal.  

104



WORKING DRAFT 
1/27/2020 
 

7 
 

POSSIBLE ALTERNATIVES FOR SECTION CONCERNING 
EXISTING PRIVATE STREETS 

 

OPTION 1: 

Sec. 24-86. – Existing Private Streets  

Private streets existing as of [date of adoption of this article] are not eligible for 
acceptance into the town’s street system. 

 

OPTION 2: 

Sec. 24-86. – Existing Private Streets  

Private streets existing as of [date of adoption of this article] that were not constructed 
to town public street standards or that were not observed by town 
representatives during critical construction phases are not eligible for acceptance 
into the town’s street system. 

 

OPTION 3: 

Sec. 24-86. – Existing Private Streets  

Private streets existing as of [date of adoption of this article] are not eligible for 
acceptance into the town’s street system unless such acceptance would, in town 
council’s discretion, further a significant public interest. 

 

OPTION 4: 

Sec. 24-86. – Special Provisions for Existing Private Streets 

(a) Private streets existing as of [date of adoption of this article] may be eligible for 
acceptance into the town’s street system. 

(b) In the discretion of town council private streets that were not observed by town 
representatives during critical construction phases may be required to submit to 
supplemental review and testing at the developer/owner’s expense to verify 
that town public street construction standards were complied with. Such inspection 
and testing may include any or all of the following or other items as required by 
town council: 

105



WORKING DRAFT 
1/27/2020 
 

8 
 

(1) Public works director, or his/her designee, and town attorney review all 
recorded plats showing width and location of reserved rights-of-way for 
streets, sidewalks, and storm drainage to confirm adequacy of right-of-way; 

(2) Public works director, or his/her designee, to review live video feed of the 
entire length of the storm drainage system showing clear lines or identifying 
areas that need to be repaired by developer/owner (see subsection (b) below 
concerning repairs); 

(3) Public works director, or his/her designee, to review all engineering plans for 
all phases of construction of street and roadbed in order to determine fill 
areas so that public works can determine where core drill testing needs to be 
conducted; 

(4) Developer/owner to conduct core drill testing of concrete/asphalt, stone 
base, and soil subgrade for all sidewalks, curb and gutter, and pavement, at 
minimum 100-foot intervals at locations determined by public works; 

(5) Testing lab, selected by public works, to determine compaction of asphalt, 
stone base, and soil subgrade, and strength of concrete, for all core drill 
samples and report findings to developer and public works; 

(6) Public works director, or his/her designee, to review findings and determine if 
any problem areas exist; 

(7) If problem areas are identified, developer/owner to conduct additional core 
drill testing in problem areas with testing to occur at closer intervals and at 
such locations as determined by public works; 

(8) Testing lab, previously selected by public works, to determine compaction of 
asphalt, stone base, and soil subgrade, and strength of concrete, for all 
additional core drill samples and report findings to developer and public 
works; 

(9) Based on the final testing results the public works director, or his/her 
designee, to determine what repairs are necessary to bring streets and/or 
related infrastructure up to town standards. 

(c) If the developer/owner undertakes any repair work recommended by the public 
works director, developer/owner is to notify public works in advance so that a public 
works representative can be present during the repair work.  

 

106



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Monday, January 27, 2020 

Subject: Planning Department Report for the 4th Quarter of Calendar 
Year 2019 and Year End 2019 

Presenter:  Planning Director 

Attachments: Planning Department Report – Q4 2019, and Year End 

Description: 

Attached you will find a report reflective of permits issued in October, November and 
December, 2019 and Planning and Zoning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustment activity 
during the same time. Year-end permit numbers are also provided.  

Action Requested: 

None 

107



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Planning Department Report – Q4 and Calendar Year End 
 

Zoning Permits:  Total: 32 
 
   Single Family, New Construction: 5 
   Single Family, Addition or Upfit: 18 
   Multifamily, New Construction: 1, 135 Monticello (237 units) 
 

Commercial, New Construction: 3 (Monticello Village Drive, 4 Garrison, 320 
Merrimon) 

   Commercial, Addition or Upfit: 3 
 
   Institutional: 2 (Weaverville Community Center, Lake Louise Fishing Pier) 
 
2019: Residential, 102; Commercial, 25; Institutional, 2; Total, 129 
2018: Residential, 100; Commercial, 23; Total, 123 
2017: Residential, 102; Commercial, 18; Total, 120 
2016: Residential, 79; Commercial, 8; Total, 87 
2015: Residential, 27; Commercial, 4; Total, 31 
2014: Residential, 49; Commercial, 4; Total, 53 (with ETJ) 
 

 
Planning and Zoning Board Activity: 
 
October: The Board deliberated a possible high density single family residential zoning district as 
called for by the comprehensive land use plan. The Board voted to amend their rules and procedures 
regarding rule 13 – duty to vote. Said amendment was ratified by Town Council at their next regularly 
scheduled meeting.   
 
December: The Board received an update related to 2019 North Carolina legislation related to 
planning and development regulation. Staff identified several portions of municipal ordinance which 
will need to be amended to remain compliant with state statute. The Board also participated in a joint 
meeting with Town Council. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

108



Page 2 of 2 
 

Zoning Board of Adjustment Activity: 
 
October: The Board held a public hearing regarding a variance application for the property commonly 
known as 120 South Main Street. The nature of the variance was to build upon a nonconforming lot of 
record with a dimensional nonconformity more than 20 percent below the minimum standards 
established by the R-1 Zoning District. The Board found in favor of the application allowing two 
preexisting nonconforming lots to be built upon.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

109



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: January 27, 2020 

Subject: Departmental Quarterly Report: Finance 

Presenter:  Town Finance Director 

Attachments:  Quarterly Report – 2nd Quarter FY 2020 

Description: 

Attached please find the Finance Department’s quarterly report, with charts summarizing 

Revenues and Expenditures as of 12/31/2019, as well as an updated summary of the Waterline 

Extension Project. 

Council Action Requested: 

No action requested. 

110



 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

Ad Valorem Tax DMV Tax Utilites Tax Sales Tax Bunc Co Fire Protection ABC Store Water Revenue

YTD Revenue Analysis

12/31/2016 12/31/2017 12/31/2018 12/31/2019 Prorated Budget FY20

111



 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

 1,400,000

Governing
Body

Admin Planning Police Fire Streets Sanitation Recreation Water Admin Water
Production

Water
Maintenance

YTD Expenditure Analysis

12/31/2016 12/31/2017 12/31/2018 12/31/2019 Prorated Budget FY20

112



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2019-2020 10/01/2019 TO 12/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

REVENUE:
010-004-300-04010  PRIOR YEAR TAX REVEN 1,000.00 -3394,393.870.00
010-004-300-04020  AD VALOREM TAX REV 3,215,563.61 232,478,703.792,048,146.89
010-004-300-04025  DMV TAX REVENUE 255,000.00 57110,333.3527,349.26
010-004-300-04030  TAX PENALTIES & INTE 4,000.00 82735.74208.20
010-004-300-05010  UTILITIES  TAX 470,000.00 49240,798.77136,395.60
010-004-300-05040  BEER & WINE TAX 17,000.00 10015.000.00
010-004-300-05050  POWELL BILL DISTRIBU 106,000.00 2103,879.0451,939.52
010-004-300-05060  LOCAL GOVT SALES TA 1,396,000.00 49717,549.00356,650.54
010-004-300-06010  BUN CNTY FIRE PROTEC 1,616,629.00 50801,891.76398,195.93
010-004-300-06040  ABC STORE DISTRIBUTI 120,000.00 7925,519.4825,519.48
010-004-300-06045  ABC STORE - ALCOHOL 3,970.58 03,970.583,970.58
010-004-300-06050  ABC STORE - POLICE DE 2,836.12 02,836.122,836.12
010-004-300-09015  CELL TOWER REVENUE 16,000.00 -316,416.3016,416.30
010-004-300-09019  STATE DISTRIBUTION - 0.00 04.744.74
010-004-300-09020  MISCELLANEOUS REVEN 5,000.00 -246,197.195,640.73
010-004-300-09028  COPS FOR KIDS 3,380.00 -33914,845.5611,540.56
010-004-300-09029  PINK PATCH PROJECT 5,292.00 -15,362.205,042.20
010-004-300-09030  INTEREST EARNED 115,500.00 5156,399.6724,628.60
010-004-300-09031  INTEREST EARNED POW 3,400.00 342,235.991,096.74
010-004-300-09040  PLANNING & ZONING FE 20,000.00 4910,222.603,585.20
010-004-300-09045  FIRE INSPECTION FEES 500.00 1000.000.00
010-004-300-09050  SALE OF PROPERTY 15,000.00 014,938.750.00
010-004-310-09900  APPROPRIATED FUND B 347,809.36 1000.000.00
030-004-300-08010  WATER REVENUE 1,968,750.00 481,030,892.21517,710.29
030-004-300-08020  MISCELLANEOUS REVEN 15,000.00 359,819.563,592.50
030-004-300-08030  WATER TAPS 42,000.00 7510,500.004,200.00
030-004-300-08040  SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT 270,000.00 45149,544.0049,104.00
030-004-300-08060  FEES FOR MSD COLLECT 55,000.00 4629,885.1515,160.60
030-004-300-09030  INTEREST EARNED 50,500.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL REVENUE 3,708,934.58 5,847,890.42 10,141,130.67 42

3,708,934.58 5,847,890.42 10,141,130.67

411 GOVERNING BODY
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-411-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 84,477.00 5042,407.6921,453.86
010-410-411-18100  FICA 6,462.49 503,244.411,641.34
010-410-411-18200  RETIREMENT 5,811.20 492,978.941,512.16
010-410-411-18500  EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE P 10,000.00 901,000.000.00
010-410-411-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 47,000.00 4326,635.034,652.50
010-410-411-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 1,000.00 90100.80100.80
010-410-411-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,000.00 85462.00100.00
010-410-411-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 11,000.00 673,576.311,872.00
010-410-411-39100  ADVERTISING 2,000.00 121,753.001,406.00

TONYA Page 1 8:47:25AM01/22/2020
fl141r07

113



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2019-2020 10/01/2019 TO 12/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-410-411-39200  NEWS LETTERS 1,500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-39300  PRINTING 1,000.00 60400.000.00
010-410-411-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 800.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-39510  COMMUNITY PROMOTIO 65,500.00 5827,650.3311,164.85
010-410-411-39520  ELECTION EXPENSES 13,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-40450  INSURANCE 600.00 77137.440.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 43,903.51 110,345.95 253,150.69 56

-253,150.69-110,345.95-43,903.51

-43,903.51 -110,345.95 -253,150.69

412 ADMINISTRATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-412-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 308,305.49 54140,588.9665,312.40
010-410-412-18100  FICA 23,585.37 5510,542.474,902.16
010-410-412-18200  RETIREMENT 27,994.14 5412,753.025,930.33
010-410-412-18210  401-K MATCH 18,498.33 587,803.873,610.80
010-410-412-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 38,439.83 5616,732.588,527.58
010-410-412-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 8,566.00 583,628.461,630.98
010-410-412-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 67,000.00 7814,563.239,019.04
010-410-412-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 1,000.00 86136.4270.88
010-410-412-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 18,000.00 685,678.092,473.43
010-410-412-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 10,000.00 287,171.964,423.23
010-410-412-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 14,000.00 575,962.613,007.74
010-410-412-32500  POSTAGE 5,000.00 81970.0838.00
010-410-412-33100  UTILITIES 5,000.00 631,825.64728.42
010-410-412-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 41,900.00 798,946.527,884.84
010-410-412-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 4,000.00 342,635.481,558.10
010-410-412-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-412-39100  ADVERTISING 1,000.00 9553.4953.49
010-410-412-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,000.00 -681,676.00170.00
010-410-412-39600  BANK SERVICE CHARGE 6,000.00 324,060.581,815.69
010-410-412-39800  ESC REIMBURSEMENT 8,000.00 712,346.422,346.42
010-410-412-40450  INSURANCE 8,250.00 414,882.71-68.26
010-410-412-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 333,336.203,336.20

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 126,771.47 256,294.79 621,539.16 59

-621,539.16-256,294.79-126,771.47

-126,771.47 -256,294.79 -621,539.16

413 PLANNING
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-413-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 72,711.44 5234,906.0716,438.77
010-410-413-18100  FICA 5,562.43 502,757.741,262.68
010-410-413-18200  RETIREMENT 6,602.20 513,260.311,492.66

TONYA Page 2 8:47:25AM01/22/2020
fl141r07

114



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2019-2020 10/01/2019 TO 12/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-410-413-18210  401-K MATCH 4,362.69 512,154.38986.34
010-410-413-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 7,619.81 543,488.301,744.92
010-410-413-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 1,500.00 34997.05669.17
010-410-413-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 500.00 8477.5454.76
010-410-413-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 1,000.00 65349.48160.00
010-410-413-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00 82460.00460.00
010-410-413-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 2,400.00 73643.26321.63
010-410-413-32500  POSTAGE 1,200.00 30835.96626.97
010-410-413-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-413-39100  ADVERTISING 1,500.00 50748.52555.76
010-410-413-40450  INSURANCE 500.00 16418.480.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 24,773.66 51,097.09 108,458.57 53

-108,458.57-51,097.09-24,773.66

-24,773.66 -51,097.09 -108,458.57

431 POLICE
EXPENDITURE:

010-430-431-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 956,351.03 47502,316.23241,597.23
010-430-431-12500  SEPARATION ALLOWAN 62,800.00 5229,904.2913,801.98
010-430-431-18100  FICA 77,965.05 5038,862.9518,674.30
010-430-431-18200  RETIREMENT 92,766.05 4848,463.0123,309.20
010-430-431-18210  401-K MATCH 57,381.06 5326,712.2012,637.14
010-430-431-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 147,686.17 5566,628.8133,607.48
010-430-431-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 23,698.00 599,785.884,892.94
010-430-431-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 87,000.00 6729,063.879,824.82
010-430-431-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 44,399.00 5818,539.9011,319.60
010-430-431-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 6,600.00 36,370.322,725.89
010-430-431-26200  CRIME PREVENTION 3,088.95 03,088.95268.95
010-430-431-26400  ALCOHOL EDUCATION & 5,909.93 84942.00314.00
010-430-431-26450  ABC LAW ENFORCEMEN 4,483.99 87596.50288.50
010-430-431-26608  COPS FOR KIDS 12,987.10 98200.0075.00
010-430-431-26609  PINK PATCH PROJECT 5,292.00 05,302.005,158.00
010-430-431-26900  UNIFORMS 9,700.00 494,924.624,307.19
010-430-431-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 5,700.00 -86,183.852,876.42
010-430-431-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 16,540.00 498,441.704,246.19
010-430-431-32500  POSTAGE 200.00 6472.8068.36
010-430-431-33100  UTILITIES 4,800.00 601,907.55805.47
010-430-431-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 5,500.00 751,369.97485.01
010-430-431-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 2,600.00 192,095.53510.08
010-430-431-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 20,000.00 706,060.793,721.40
010-430-431-40450  INSURANCE 60,861.05 3042,318.60-691.35
010-430-431-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 76,700.00 3450,658.0241,457.14
010-430-431-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 141,550.00 7831,215.760.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 436,280.94 942,026.10 1,932,559.38 51

TONYA Page 3 8:47:25AM01/22/2020
fl141r07

115



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2019-2020 10/01/2019 TO 12/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

-1,932,559.38-942,026.10-436,280.94

-436,280.94 -942,026.10 -1,932,559.38

434 FIRE
EXPENDITURE:

010-430-434-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 1,298,361.20 49667,942.28315,814.82
010-430-434-12110  OVERTIME 59,836.00 6818,875.198,160.86
010-430-434-12800  RELIEF PAY 106,000.00 7624,970.5013,115.25
010-430-434-18100  FICA 109,639.59 5351,146.9924,255.60
010-430-434-18200  RETIREMENT 123,324.31 5061,724.5129,185.95
010-430-434-18210  401-K MATCH 81,491.83 6231,293.5014,880.11
010-430-434-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 205,282.38 5299,318.5151,140.55
010-430-434-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 7,566.00 493,823.292,192.31
010-430-434-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 11,320.00 604,522.462,801.09
010-430-434-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 24,000.00 5211,484.915,282.29
010-430-434-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 10,000.00 613,915.511,776.12
010-430-434-26100  MEDICAL VACINATIONS 9,000.00 1000.000.00
010-430-434-26150  PREVENTATION SUPPLI 6,000.00 731,615.01479.30
010-430-434-26260  MEDICAL EQUIP & SUPP 6,000.00 632,199.801,177.42
010-430-434-26600  CONTRIBUTORY EXPEN 644.15 1000.000.00
010-430-434-26900  UNIFORMS 11,000.00 643,958.542,095.58
010-430-434-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 11,000.00 653,841.391,867.80
010-430-434-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 20,635.00 529,900.644,917.52
010-430-434-33100  UTILITIES 15,000.00 576,449.243,187.44
010-430-434-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 15,000.00 724,272.623,199.12
010-430-434-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 20,000.00 803,905.611,902.06
010-430-434-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 30,000.00 6610,239.006,621.30
010-430-434-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 8,500.00 315,830.60-9,930.00
010-430-434-40450  INSURANCE 94,300.00 3263,855.89-648.39
010-430-434-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 92,137.89 936,053.265,586.28
010-430-434-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 44,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 489,060.38 1,101,139.25 2,420,038.35 54

-2,420,038.35-1,101,139.25-489,060.38

-489,060.38 -1,101,139.25 -2,420,038.35

451 STREETS
EXPENDITURE:

010-450-451-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 159,897.00 5178,779.1736,363.57
010-450-451-18100  FICA 12,232.12 545,609.142,589.37
010-450-451-18200  RETIREMENT 14,518.65 517,153.153,301.82
010-450-451-18210  401-K MATCH 9,593.82 752,358.201,095.30
010-450-451-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 27,690.56 5412,772.505,493.65
010-450-451-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 5,900.00 88692.82446.91

TONYA Page 4 8:47:25AM01/22/2020
fl141r07

116



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2019-2020 10/01/2019 TO 12/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-450-451-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 28,100.00 6111,030.832,308.50
010-450-451-19900  CONTRACT WORK 30,500.00 961,264.401,250.90
010-450-451-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 7,000.00 712,008.57774.52
010-450-451-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 27,000.00 6110,571.526,423.73
010-450-451-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 2,300.00 81436.5473.59
010-450-451-26900  UNIFORMS 1,900.00 89210.00210.00
010-450-451-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 3,000.00 411,767.66883.83
010-450-451-33100  UTILITIES 58,000.00 6420,692.018,835.21
010-450-451-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 2,200.00 73597.90341.40
010-450-451-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 7,000.00 841,119.00861.00
010-450-451-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 4,500.00 92353.45304.50
010-450-451-40450  INSURANCE 10,890.00 208,761.23-602.93
010-450-451-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 2,400.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 354,000.00 15301,313.8143,019.19
010-450-451-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 45,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 113,974.06 467,491.90 816,122.15 43

-816,122.15-467,491.90-113,974.06

-113,974.06 -467,491.90 -816,122.15

459 POWELL BILL
EXPENDITURE:

010-450-459-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 9,247.88 494,758.132,207.09
010-450-459-18100  FICA 707.46 51350.15162.49
010-450-459-18200  RETIREMENT 839.71 49432.05200.40
010-450-459-18210  401-K MATCH 554.87 73150.3770.47
010-450-459-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 1,106.40 57475.88244.85
010-450-459-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 94,000.00 7523,133.520.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 2,885.30 29,300.10 106,456.32 72

-106,456.32-29,300.10-2,885.30

-2,885.30 -29,300.10 -106,456.32

471 SANITATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-470-471-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 282,813.77 60112,901.6953,204.98
010-470-471-18100  FICA 21,635.25 628,315.483,923.21
010-470-471-18200  RETIREMENT 25,679.49 6010,251.474,831.00
010-470-471-18210  401-K MATCH 16,968.83 695,268.032,499.63
010-470-471-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 52,038.76 6319,251.079,582.77
010-470-471-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 4,283.00 362,746.001,525.35
010-470-471-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 2,000.00 -42,083.051,894.61
010-470-471-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 34,000.00 432,687.9217,448.66
010-470-471-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 22,000.00 589,206.665,505.73

TONYA Page 5 8:47:25AM01/22/2020
fl141r07

117



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2019-2020 10/01/2019 TO 12/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-470-471-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 8,500.00 514,150.454,239.65
010-470-471-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 4,500.00 671,500.69687.94
010-470-471-26900  UNIFORMS 5,100.00 89546.47546.47
010-470-471-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 1,500.00 86216.04162.03
010-470-471-33100  UTILITIES 4,000.00 671,300.85576.62
010-470-471-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 2,300.00 9688.9088.90
010-470-471-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 10,500.00 346,944.586,391.80
010-470-471-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 16,500.00 3610,581.459,665.69
010-470-471-40100  TIPPING FEES 75,000.00 6129,620.1614,217.06
010-470-471-40450  INSURANCE 35,000.00 1728,998.01769.64
010-470-471-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 92413.82413.82

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 138,175.56 287,072.79 629,319.10 54

-629,319.10-287,072.79-138,175.56

-138,175.56 -287,072.79 -629,319.10

612 RECREATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-600-612-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 123,677.35 4963,333.4028,876.45
010-600-612-18100  FICA 9,461.32 504,694.232,141.17
010-600-612-18200  RETIREMENT 11,229.90 495,750.662,622.02
010-600-612-18210  401-K MATCH 7,420.64 583,127.931,424.89
010-600-612-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 19,639.56 548,991.734,495.75
010-600-612-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 1,500.00 -1283,426.461,882.52
010-600-612-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 32,000.00 1000.000.00
010-600-612-19900  CONTRACT WORK 9,600.00 663,243.503,243.50
010-600-612-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 3,000.00 491,528.19968.38
010-600-612-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 22,000.00 599,026.335,566.38
010-600-612-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 1,800.00 79386.80386.80
010-600-612-26900  UNIFORMS 1,900.00 89200.00200.00
010-600-612-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 1,200.00 91108.0481.03
010-600-612-33100  UTILITIES 12,500.00 595,161.043,126.80
010-600-612-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 1,200.00 89131.000.00
010-600-612-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 4,000.00 501,993.17299.00
010-600-612-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,300.00 83215.9830.00
010-600-612-40450  INSURANCE 7,200.00 374,551.240.00
010-600-612-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 1,800.00 1000.000.00
010-600-612-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 140,000.00 28100,714.5663,264.65
010-600-612-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 45,000.00 2036,121.0036,121.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 154,730.34 252,705.26 457,428.77 45

-457,428.77-252,705.26-154,730.34

-154,730.34 -252,705.26 -457,428.77

711 WATER ADMINISTRATION
TONYA Page 6 8:47:25AM01/22/2020
fl141r07

118



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2019-2020 10/01/2019 TO 12/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

EXPENDITURE:
030-700-711-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 117,291.84 5157,659.5827,119.91
030-700-711-18100  FICA 8,972.83 514,363.712,053.34
030-700-711-18200  RETIREMENT 10,650.10 515,235.392,462.43
030-700-711-18210  401-K MATCH 7,037.51 513,438.911,620.72
030-700-711-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 21,843.05 657,549.563,654.53
030-700-711-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 25,000.00 639,330.217,731.57
030-700-711-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 2,000.00 86286.79136.88
030-700-711-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 3,500.00 441,974.691,250.55
030-700-711-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 550.00 79114.80114.80
030-700-711-26900  UNIFORMS 400.00 1000.000.00
030-700-711-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,000.00 79429.9018.17
030-700-711-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 3,800.00 521,809.43904.72
030-700-711-32500  POSTAGE 12,000.00 604,764.002,892.95
030-700-711-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,500.00 1000.000.00
030-700-711-40450  INSURANCE 12,500.00 348,221.02-386.28
030-700-711-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 1,800.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 49,574.29 105,177.99 230,845.33 54

-230,845.33-105,177.99-49,574.29

-49,574.29 -105,177.99 -230,845.33

712 PRODUCTION
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-712-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 307,721.50 54142,163.1568,469.14
030-700-712-18100  FICA 23,540.70 5610,444.275,039.26
030-700-712-18200  RETIREMENT 27,941.11 5412,908.486,217.04
030-700-712-18210  401-K MATCH 18,463.29 744,877.492,827.17
030-700-712-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 42,340.26 5120,707.3110,319.87
030-700-712-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 11,850.00 496,007.953,156.33
030-700-712-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 18,000.00 882,111.871,388.08
030-700-712-19600  WATER TESTING / MAIN 16,000.00 665,504.653,007.75
030-700-712-19900  CONTRACT WORK 10,000.00 772,267.001,040.00
030-700-712-20000  CHEMICALS 60,000.00 7713,741.21-472.46
030-700-712-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 4,500.00 80915.87455.71
030-700-712-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 10,000.00 811,881.871,741.74
030-700-712-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 2,000.00 83334.51334.51
030-700-712-26900  UNIFORMS 2,300.00 68733.460.00
030-700-712-27001  LAB SUPPLIES 17,500.00 538,177.373,943.13
030-700-712-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,500.00 92363.900.00
030-700-712-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 5,500.00 602,182.311,038.27
030-700-712-33100  UTILITIES 103,000.00 6634,791.5921,237.47
030-700-712-34000  SLUDGE REMOVAL 70,000.00 7914,510.7014,510.70
030-700-712-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 15,000.00 881,733.660.00
030-700-712-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 13,000.00 822,308.982,304.00
030-700-712-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 3,000.00 1000.000.00

TONYA Page 7 8:47:25AM01/22/2020
fl141r07

119



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2019-2020 10/01/2019 TO 12/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

030-700-712-40450  INSURANCE 12,650.00 328,607.300.00
030-700-712-40900  WATER PURCHASES 6,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-712-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 3,800.00 631,419.80507.80
030-700-712-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 80,000.00 5436,517.0635,337.06

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 182,402.57 335,211.76 888,606.86 62

-888,606.86-335,211.76-182,402.57

-182,402.57 -335,211.76 -888,606.86

713 MAINTENANCE
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-713-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 318,838.92 52151,625.0372,213.51
030-700-713-18100  FICA 24,391.81 5610,793.065,149.25
030-700-713-18200  RETIREMENT 28,950.57 5213,767.646,557.01
030-700-713-18210  401-K MATCH 19,130.34 833,320.301,583.26
030-700-713-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 52,689.83 5126,075.4111,389.81
030-700-713-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 9,000.00 563,996.092,243.79
030-700-713-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 3,000.00 332,000.002,000.00
030-700-713-19900  CONTRACT WORK 3,500.00 272,551.262,491.26
030-700-713-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 9,900.00 613,892.771,824.28
030-700-713-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 44,000.00 5121,624.5017,319.29
030-700-713-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 3,500.00 74917.38486.75
030-700-713-26900  UNIFORMS 4,000.00 95200.00200.00
030-700-713-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,800.00 671,259.04240.00
030-700-713-32100  TELEPHONE / INTERNET 6,000.00 522,907.441,324.22
030-700-713-33100  UTILITIES 31,000.00 709,165.555,513.76
030-700-713-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 4,800.00 432,735.472,265.00
030-700-713-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 8,800.00 553,935.431,812.98
030-700-713-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 6,900.00 126,091.274,444.03
030-700-713-39410  EQUIPMENTAL RENTAL 1,200.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-40450  INSURANCE 12,100.00 259,111.79504.50
030-700-713-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 492,546.002,546.00
030-700-713-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 180,000.00 35117,212.94117,212.94
030-700-713-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 133,000.00 5165,680.0065,680.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 325,001.64 461,408.37 913,501.47 49

-913,501.47-461,408.37-325,001.64

-325,001.64 -461,408.37 -913,501.47

910 DEBT SERVICE
EXPENDITURE:

010-910-910-91061  LOAN PAYMENT-FIRE T 53,541.00 053,540.720.00
010-910-910-91063  LOAN PAYMENT - FIRE S 246,267.58 50123,215.79123,215.79
030-910-910-60030  RESERVE FOR BOND PA 203,974.00 9020,486.7020,486.70

TONYA Page 8 8:47:25AM01/22/2020
fl141r07

120



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2019-2020 10/01/2019 TO 12/31/2019
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 143,702.49 197,243.21 503,782.58 61

-503,782.58-197,243.21-143,702.49

-143,702.49 -197,243.21 -503,782.58

999 OTHER FUNDING USES
EXPENDITURE:

010-005-999-90000  CONTINGENCY 20,000.00 1000.000.00
030-005-999-90000  CONTINGENCY 15,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 100

-35,000.000.000.00

0.00 0.00 -35,000.00

TONYA Page 9 8:47:25AM01/22/2020
fl141r07

121



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
WATERLINE EXTENSION PROJECT ESTABLISHED  2/25/19

PAID IN 12/31/2019 CUMULATIVE REMAINING
BUDGETED FY 2019 YEAR-TO-DATE TOTAL BALANCE

EXPENDITURE:
060-300-000-19005 CONSTRUCTION ADMIN 5,000.00           -                      1,124.00               1,124.00               3,876.00           
060-300-000-19007 LEGAL SERVICES 15,000.00         10,000.00          -                         10,000.00             5,000.00           
060-300-000-19008 ENGINEERING FEES 405,000.00      118,000.00        100,800.00           218,800.00           186,200.00      
060-300-000-19009 INTEREST ON INTERIM 90,000.00         0.00 0.00 -                         90,000.00        
060-300-000-19900 CONSTRUCTION COST 2,329,200.00   0.00 0.00 -                         2,329,200.00   
060-300-000-90000 CONTINGENCY 126,400.00      0.00 0.00 -                         126,400.00      
  TOTAL EXPENDITURE 2,970,600.00   128,000.00        101,924.00           229,924.00           2,740,676.00   

FINANCING SOURCE:
060-000-300-60030 TRANSFER FROM WATER FUND 170,600.00      170,600.00        0.00 170,600.00           0.00
060-000-300-60035 PROCEEDS FROM DEBT 2,800,000.00   0.00 0.00 0.00 2,800,000.00   
  TOTAL FINANCING SOURCE 2,970,600.00   170,600.00        -                         170,600.00           2,800,000.00   

122


	December 12 2019 - Joint Meeting between PZB  TC - with jj revisions
	December 16 2019 -Town Council Meeting Minutes - with jj revisions
	Monthly Tax Report for 1-21-2020
	Sheet1 (2)

	January 27, 2020 -Tax Release
	Arbor Day Resolution Agenda Item 1-27-2020
	agenda item summary
	arbor day proclamation 2020

	Budget Calendar Agenda Item 1-27-2020
	agenda item summary.pdf
	FY2021 Budget Calendar.pdf

	Set PH on Code Amendment - Technical Review Committee
	Technical Review Committee - Set PH.pdf
	Technical Review Committee.pdf
	Technical Review Committee.pdf
	Technical Review Committee Text Amendment.pdf
	Technical Review Comittee Staff Report.pdf
	Technical Review Comittee Staff Report.pdf



	Lake Louise Public Fishing Access Project - January 2020
	Budget Amendment Form - Police Dept_ 1-27-20
	Town Managers Monthly Report Jan 2020 (1)
	agenda item summary-TM Report.pdf
	TM Report January 2020 final.pdf

	Community Center Project - January 2020
	Bid-Tabulation-Certification-WVL-CC-2020-01-22.pdf
	A

	Weaverville-Community-Center-Memo-re-Bid Tabulation+Recommendations-2020-01-23.pdf
	Memo
	To:   Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM, Town Manager, Town of Weaverville
	Dale Pennell, PE, PLS, Public Works Director, Town of Weaverville


	Waterline Extension Project - Award Bid and Amend Capital Project Ord
	Engineer Recommendation of Award Letter.pdf
	Draft Agreement.pdf
	ARTICLE 1 –  WORK
	1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is generally described as follows:

	ARTICLE 2 –  THE PROJECT
	2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is known as the Water System Improvement project.

	ARTICLE 3 –  ENGINEER
	3.01 The Project has been designed by WithersRavenel.
	3.02 The Owner has retained WithersRavenel (“Engineer”) to act as Owner’s representative, assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the...

	ARTICLE 4 –  CONTRACT TIMES
	4.01 Time of the Essence
	A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.

	4.02 Contract Times: Days
	A. The Work will be substantially completed within 335 days after the date when the Contract Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions, and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of...

	4.03 Liquidated Damages
	A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed and Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02...
	1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner $500  for each day that expires after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in Paragraph 4.02.A above for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete.
	2. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final paym...
	3. Liquidated damages for failing to timely attain Substantial Completion and final completion are not additive and will not be imposed concurrently.


	4.04 Special Damages [Deleted]
	A. In addition to the amount provided for liquidated damages, Contractor shall reimburse Owner (1) for any fines or penalties imposed on Owner as a direct result of the Contractor’s failure to attain Substantial Completion according to the Contract Ti...
	B. After Contractor achieves Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Times, Contractor shall reimburse Owner for the actual costs reasonably incurred by Owner for engineer...


	ARTICLE 5 –  CONTRACT PRICE
	5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract:
	A. For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the extended prices (established for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work by multiplying the unit price times the actual quantity of that item) as shown on the Bid form.  The exte...


	ARTICLE 6 –  PAYMENT PROCEDURES
	6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments
	A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General Conditions.

	6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage
	A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of Contractor’s Applications for Payment on or about the 25th day of each month during performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that s...
	1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts as Engineer may determine or Owner may with...
	a. 95 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage); If the Work has been 50 percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and progress of the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long as the ch...
	b. 95 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with the balance being retainage).


	B. Upon Substantial Completion of the entire construction to be provided under the Contract Documents, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to Contractor to 100 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off by Own...

	6.03 Final Payment
	A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06.


	ARTICLE 7 –  INTEREST
	7.01 All amounts not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of 8 percent per annum.

	ARTICLE 8 –  CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS
	8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following representations:
	A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and reference items identified in the Contract Documents.
	B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance ...
	C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
	D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been...
	E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and t...
	F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Pr...
	G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.
	H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor.
	I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.
	J. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents.


	ARTICLE 9 –  CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
	9.01 Contents
	A. The Contract Documents consist of the following:
	1. This Agreement
	2. Performance bond
	3. Payment bond
	4. General Conditions
	5. Supplementary Conditions
	6. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual
	7. Drawings as listed in Section 00850 – Drawing Index
	8. Addenda (numbers 1 to 3, inclusive)
	9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows):
	a. Contractor’s Bid

	10. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract and are not attached hereto:
	a. Notice to Proceed.
	b. Work Change Directives.
	c. Change Orders.
	d. Field Orders.


	B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as expressly noted otherwise above).
	C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9.
	D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in the General Conditions.


	ARTICLE 10 –  MISCELLANEOUS
	10.01 Terms
	A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions.

	10.02 Assignment of Contract
	A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifi...

	10.03 Successors and Assigns
	A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contr...

	10.04 Severability
	A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the...

	10.05 Contractor’s Certifications
	A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 10.05:
	1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the Contract execution;
	2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels...
	3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels; and
	4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract.


	10.06 Other Provisions
	A. Owner stipulates that if the General Conditions that are made a part of this Contract are based on EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions for the Construction Contract, published by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee®, and if Owner...





	Policies regarding Acceptance of Private Streets - January 2020
	Planning Department Report - Q4 and Year End 2019
	Planning Department Report - Q4, 2019.pdf
	Zoning Permit Report - 2019.pdf

	Finance Dept - Quarterly Report 12-31-19
	Quarterly Report -charts 12-31-19.pdf
	Chart1
	Chart2

	Capital Project Fund 060_12-31-19.pdf
	12-31-19



	Mayor of the Town of:                     Allan P. Root
	do hereby proclaim:       Weaverville, North Carolina
	as:          Friday, April 24, 2020
	and I urge all:                      Weaverville
	day of:               27th
	undefined:         January, 2020
	Mayor: 


